




TOWN OF BOURNE 
 

 
 

Vision 
 
Bourne is a proud community that embraces change while respecting the rich 
heritage of the town and its villages.  It is a municipality based on strong fiscal 
government with a durable economy that recognizes the rights of all citizens, 
respects the environment, especially the coastal areas of the community and the 
amenities that it affords. Bourne embraces excellent education, and offers to 
citizens a healthy, active lifestyle. 

 

Mission 
 
Bourne will maximize opportunities for social and economic development while 
retaining an attractive, sustainable and secure coastline and environment for the 
enjoyment of residents and visitors.  Through responsible and professional 
leadership and in partnership with others, Bourne will strive to improve the quality 
of life for all residents living and working in the larger community. 
 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLES OF THE WARRANT, MOTIONS, 

VOTER INFORMATION, AND 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

OF THE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

FOR THE 

BOURNE SPECIAL 

And 

ANNUAL TOWN 

MEETING 

Monday, May 6, 2024 

7:00 P.M. 

Bourne High School Auditorium 
 

 

A Voter’s Handbook 

 
PLEASE BRING THIS HANDBOOK TO EACH SESSION OF 

TOWN MEETING 

 

  

 
 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

VOTER HANDBOOK 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
Town Meeting ABCs 

 

Rules of the Moderator 

 

Special Town Meeting Article Index 

Articles, Motions, and Finance Committee Recommendations 

 

Annual Town Meeting Article Index 

Articles, Motions, and Finance Committee Recommendations 

 

Appendix A –Finance Committee Report and Roll Call Votes 

 

Appendix B – Fiscal Year 2025 Operating Budget 

 

Appendix C – Fiscal Year 2025 Capital Budget 

 

Appendix D – Supporting Information 

 

Appendix E – Bourne Rule 

 

 
  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

SOME ABC'S ABOUT TOWN MEETING 
 

THE PLAYERS 

As you face the front of the auditorium, you see on the stage various officials and resource people 

in the following approximate positions: In the middle is the Moderator, an elected town official 

who conducts the meeting. Beside to your left the Moderator is the Town Clerk and staff who 

record the proceedings. Seated from left to right: Finance Committee; and Select Board; and, 

Town Counsel, to the right of the Moderator. 

 

WHO MAY VOTE? 

All registered voters of the Town of Bourne who have been checked in at the registration desks, 

and who display their identification tag. 

 

THE QUORUM 

One hundred twenty five (125) voters present constitute a quorum required for commencing the 

business of Town Meeting. Once the meeting opens, the quorum drops to one hundred (100) 

voters. 

 

THE WARRANT 

The official listing of articles compiled, publicly posted and distributed to voters at Town 

Meeting. 

 

ARTICLES 

Articles are the individual subjects to be acted on by Town Meeting. They have been submitted 

by Town Boards and Departments, by the Select Board, and by private petition endorsed by ten 

or more registered voters (for an annual town meeting) or one hundred or more registered voters 

(for a special town meeting). 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

The Moderator determines when a quorum is present and calls the meeting to order. Following 

the pledge of allegiance, the Moderator reviews the basic rules under which the meeting will be 

conducted. Special Resolutions, if any, are presented and acted upon. With some exceptions, 

articles are called by lottery, discussed, and voted upon. This procedure is followed for each 

article until the warrant has been completed. If necessary, due to time constraints, additional 

meetings will be scheduled. 

 

MOTIONS 

When an article reaches the floor, the Moderator will usually ask if the Select Board has a 

recommendation and a motion to offer. The Moderator will then ask if the Finance Committee 

has a recommendation to offer.  This is because Town Bylaw requires the Finance Committee to 

review and make recommendations on all articles in the warrant. On articles presented by the 

Planning Board, the Moderator will ask them to present a motion and their official report. The 

Finance Committee will then make its recommendation. Motions not related to subjects in the 

warrant or to the conduct of the meeting are not permitted. 

 

 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

INDEFINITE POSTPONEMENT 

A motion to indefinitely postpone action on an article is a motion not to take positive action at 

this town meeting. 

 

NEGATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS 

If the action recommended by the Select Board on an article other than zoning bylaw articles is 

negative, the Moderator will ask if any voter present wishes to make a positive motion. If so, the 

person making the motion must also be prepared to submit the motion in writing to the 

Moderator. 

 

AMENDMENTS 

Any voter present may request to be recognized by the Moderator for purposes of offering an 

amendment to any motion under discussion. The motion to amend must be in writing and include 

the specific words to be deleted in the original motion as well as those to be substituted. 

 

PARTICIPATION 

If you have a question of clarification concerning an article or motion under discussion, or wish 

to participate in such discussion, please do so. To be recognized by the Moderator, raise your 

hand or if necessary, stand in place. When recognized, step forward to the nearest microphone as 

quickly as possible and state your name. Speak slowly and clearly into the microphone. Be as 

concise and brief as possible, and by all means stick to the point at hand. Keep your remarks to 

3½ minutes or less. 

 

VOTING 

Generally, after appropriate motion and discussion, if any, the Moderator will call for a ballot 

vote using electronic keypads.  The Moderator, at her discretion, may use electronic balloting for 

any or all votes. 

 

DEFINITIONS 

For the benefit of those who may not be familiar with some of the financial terms appearing in or 

used in the course of considering various articles, the following much simplified definitions 

maybe helpful: 

 

CONSENT ARTICLE 

The Consent article is an exception to the general process of Town Meeting. In consultation 

between Town Counsel, the Moderator, the Finance Committee, and the Select Board, several 

articles that are usually voted separately have been combined into one article. These articles, 

which are related to each other, not likely to be controversial and not likely to generate debate, 

have been combined into one article to allow a single motion and voted as one unit. At the call of 

the Consent Article the Moderator will refer to each section of the article, one by one. If any 

voter calls out “hold” in a loud voice, that particular section is laid aside for separate 

consideration. After reading all of the article sections, the Moderator will entertain motion on the 

sections not set aside to be voted as one unit. After that vote, the meeting will consider the 

sections set aside and takes them up in order for discussion and possible amendment, rejection or 

other disposition. 

GENERAL FUND 

The account in which general and/or undesignated revenues are deposited for use in paying the 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

general expenses of the Town. 

 

STABILIZATION FUND 

Monies appropriated by the Town to fund capital expenditures for equipment, land, or large-scale 

projects or for any other lawful purposes. An appropriation into the stabilization fund requires a 

majority vote and a 2/3 vote is required to appropriate money from the Stabilization Fund. 

 

RESERVE FUND 

Monies appropriated by the Town to cover extraordinary or unforeseen expenses during the fiscal 

year as approved by the Finance Committee. 

 

FREE CASH 

The amount of the Town’s surplus revenue over and above uncollected taxes of prior years. 

 

RAISE AND APPROPRIATE 

The authority voted by the Town to raise by taxation and spend Town Funds for purposes stated 

in various articles in the warrant. The dollar amount, which can be raised by taxation, is limited 

by the state law known as “Proposition 2-1/2”. After the setting of the tax rate, no funds may be 

raised and appropriated by taxation at a special town meeting. 

 

TAX LEVY 

The maximum amount of money that by State law may be raised through property taxes in any 

given year. The Tax Levy is by far the largest of a number of revenue sources for the Town, 

accounting for over half of the total. The maximum tax levy is limited by Proposition 2-1/2. 

 

TAX RATE 

The dollar amount per $1000 of property valuation required to collect the Tax Levy through 

property tax bills. 

 

THE BOURNE RULE 

The "Bourne Rule" controls unlimited spending by town meeting in violation of Proposition 2-

1/2. The rule, adopted at the beginning of town meeting by resolution, requires any amendment 

seeking funding in excess of the amount recommended by the Finance Committee to state an 

equal dollar reduction in another appropriation or appropriations in order to maintain all spending 

in balance so that the tax levy will not exceed the maximum levy limit imposed by Proposition 2-

1/2. 

 

RULES OF DEBATE: 

1. All debate will be conducted in a respectful and courteous manner and in a calm and collected 

tone. 

2. All comments and inquiries will be directed to the moderator and are specifically limited to the 

subject matter being debated. 

3. Confine your remarks to a maximum of 3½ minutes, unless you have prior approval to speak 

longer. If you attempt to use your speech to incite the crowd, you may be removed from the 

auditorium by the Sgt. at Arms, at the discretion of the moderator. 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

4. Speak only to the motion on the floor. Do not be repetitive. Be concise and to the point. 

5. No comments of a personal nature are allowed. 

6. No applause for any speaker is allowed. 

7. No boos, catcalls, or similar interference with the speaker’s remarks may be directed against any 

speaker. 

8. Any person unwilling or unable to comply with these rules may, by state law, be removed from 

the auditorium by the Sgt. at Arms at the sole discretion of the moderator. 

Even though a crowd of persons may be booing, applauding, or engaged in other bad behavior, 

the moderator may start singling out one or two persons at a time engaged in this bad behavior to 

be removed from the auditorium by the Sgt. at Arms. This is going to continue until all the 

offending conduct ceases. 

 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

RULES OF THE MODERATOR 

TOWN MEETING PROCEDURES 

 

1. Non-Voter Seating. At the beginning of the meeting the Moderator designates rows of seats 

for seating of non-voters. 

 

1A. Non-Voter Minor Children. With the permission of a doorkeeper, voter(s) attending 

town meeting with a child(ren) may be allowed to sit with their child(ren) in voter 

seating. That said, we respectfully request that you do not bring children under age 6 to 

town meeting. 

 

2. Moderator rulings and procedure at the Town meeting are governed by Federal and 

Massachusetts laws, the Town Charter, Town Bylaws, and “Roberts Rules of Order” as 

interpreted in the book entitled Town Meeting Time. 

 

3. The Moderator will not entertain shouted motions from the floor to Move the Question, or to 

challenge a quorum, or for any other purpose. Any person wishing to speak must first rise 

and be recognized by the Moderator. If a person has a mobility or physical disability, please 

notify the tellers, and the tellers will provide a portable microphone so that person can speak 

from their seat. 

 

4. Individuals with hearing difficulty need to contact the Select Board’s office at town hall at 

least three business days prior to the town meeting so that language signers can be made 

available for the meeting. 

 

5. Speakers. Before speaking, state your name clearly for the record. Speak concisely and speak 

to the motion on the floor. Speak only long enough to make your point. Do not repeat what 

prior speakers have already said. Three to five minutes should be more than enough time to 

make a point, if the speaker is clear and concise. 

 

6. The Moderator will not tolerate personal attacks, cat-calling, applause, booing, heckling, or 

any other form of disruption during the meeting. Pursuant to Massachusetts law, any person 

disrupting the town meeting may be caused by the Moderator to be taken into custody and 

removed from the meeting by the Sergeant-at-Arms or a Constable and held until the 

conclusion of the meeting. 
 

7. The meeting is now televised live by the local Comcast cable television company, and is later 

also re-broadcast on the local cable access channel. 

 

8. There is a stenographer keeping an official written transcript of the meeting. 

 

9. Voter Tags. If there is a counted, standing vote, or a secret ballot, voters must have their 

voter tag visible and be in a seat in the voter’s section in order to be counted. The tellers will 

not count anyone not seated in a seat in the voter’s section or anyone without a voter tag. 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

10. Fifteen (15) or more registered voters may request a secret ballot. In the event of a secret 

ballot, the doorkeepers will call everyone into the auditorium who wishes to vote, and then 

close the doors. You may leave the auditorium at any time, but you will not be allowed to 

return to the auditorium until the Moderator declares that vote casting is concluded, and the 

doorkeepers may open the doors. 

 

11. If a voter wishes to change a motion in some fashion, the procedure is to amend the motion. 

All motions to amend must be in writing and must state exactly how the voter wishes to 

change the motion on the floor. That way, the Moderator can know exactly what it is the 

voter wants to do before ruling on the motion or putting it to a vote. A voter who wishes to 

amend a main motion must have the amendment in writing and available to hand to the 

Moderator before rising to offer the amendment. The Moderator may refuse to put to the 

Meeting an amendment which is not immediately available in writing - The Moderator also 

will rule out of order any motion to amend which changes the original motion so drastically 

that, in the Moderator's opinion, the motion is no longer within the "four corners" (the scope) 

of the posted warrant article. An amendment may consist of adding, deleting, or substituting 

words in the motion. It may take the form of a "motion to substitute", i.e., a different motion. 

Sometimes a speaker tries to amend "the article", but this is improper language. It is the 

motion on the floor, not the article in the Warrant, which is to be amended. A motion to 

amend requires only a majority vote, even though the main motion to be amended may 

require two-thirds or more for final passage. If you need assistance drafting a motion to 

amend, please ask for it, and the deputy moderator will help you. 

 

12. Articles in the warrant seeking to amend the Bourne Zoning Bylaw or Zoning Map require 

special treatment. Some Moderators refuse to allow any amendment to a main motion on a 

zoning article. I generally will allow a motion to amend to correct a clerical matter, 

misspelling, or similar non-substantive change. For example, if the main motion is to 

increase minimum lot size from 40,000 to 50,000 square feet, a motion to amend to increase 

only to 45,000 square feet, will not be allowed, as it is a substantive change to the published 

zoning article. On the other hand, a motion to change the word “feat” (sic) to “feet” will 

generally be allowed to correct a clerical error. 

 

13. Reconsideration – One Hour Rule. Pursuant to Bourne Town Bylaw, notice of intention to 

reconsider action on an article may only be given within one hour of continuous town 

meeting time. Depending on the hour the original vote is taken and officially recorded by the 

Town Clerk, this one hour may carry over to a subsequent session of the same town meeting 

in which the original vote is taken. The subsequent session of town meeting may reconvene 

several days after the original vote is taken. 

 

14. Reconsideration – Vote on Prevailing Side. Because it is a matter of long time custom and 

practice in the Town of Bourne, the Moderator will not allow a notice of intention to 

reconsider or a motion to reconsider a vote except from a voter who voted on the prevailing 

side of the original vote. If “Aye” was the prevailing vote, the voter who wishes to file a 

notice of intention to reconsider, and/or to move reconsideration, must have voted “Aye”. 

The Moderator will ask the voter which way they voted. The person who files a notice of 

intention to reconsider, and who makes the actual motion to reconsider, need not be the same 

person, but both must have voted on the prevailing side. Notice of intention to reconsider is 

only allowed on the main motion. A vote to reconsider an amendment must be made before 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

the next vote is taken. A notice of intention to reconsider is not allowed for an amendment to 

the main motion. 

 

15. It is solely within the discretion of the Moderator to allow non-voters to address the town 

meeting. It has been a matter of long time custom and practice in Bourne that the Moderator 

will generally allow non-voters to address the town meeting. 

 

16. A town meeting is a public meeting. There are no expectations of privacy at a public 

meeting. A transcript of the meeting is kept. The meeting is televised live and also video-

taped by the Comcast local cable access channel for later re-broadcast on that cable channel. 

Press photographers are present taking photographs, including photographs of standing, 

counted votes. The Moderator does not allow still or motion photography at the ballot boxes 

of voter’s casting their votes during a secret ballot. 

 

17. In order to maintain the continuity of a session of a town meeting, if the Moderator needs a 

brief break, the Moderator may state that the Deputy Moderator, “has the gavel” for the short 

time the Moderator is absent from the podium, but still present in the building. There is no 

need to elect a temporary moderator unless the duly elected moderator is actually absent from 

the building for an extended period of time. If the moderator cannot attend a town meeting, 

or has to leave a town meeting due to illness, for example, the town clerk (or Select Board 

chairman, if the town clerk is absent or unable) will hold an election for a temporary 

moderator to run the town meeting. 

 

18. Persons running for public office, and their supporters, persons distributing literature 

promoting pro or con action on a warrant article or other matter of public interest, and 

persons soliciting signatures for candidates or for membership in a political group or 

organization, must remain not less than 50 feet from any entrance of the meeting location, 

except when they themselves are entering the town meeting for the purpose of attending the 

town meeting, or when they are actually in attendance at the town meeting. 

 

19. If the Moderator determines that an article in the warrant is seeking a sense of the meeting on 

a matter of a celebratory nature, or not involving the Town of Bourne directly, the Moderator 

will treat the article as a non-binding resolution. As such, one person will be allowed five 

minutes to speak in favor of the resolution, and one person the same amount of time to speak 

in opposition to the resolution. The motion will then be put to a vote without further 

discussion. If, on the other hand, the article is seeking a sense of the meeting on a matter 

directly involving the Town of Bourne, the Moderator will still treat it as a non-binding 

resolution, but they may allow normal debate on the substance of the article. 

 

20. Except with advance approval from the Moderator in the case of special presentations 

associated with the subject matter of an article, speakers shall confine their remarks to no 

more than 3 ½ minutes. Generally, 3 ½ minutes is more than sufficient time to make a point 

or state a position. Be concise. Speak only to the motion on the floor. 
 

21. Town Counsel. Opinions of Town Counsel are reserved for the benefit of elected and 

appointed municipal officials. Please do not ask for an opinion of Town Counsel unless you 

are an elected or appointed Bourne official with an interest in the opinion. Even then, it is up 

to Town Counsel to determine if they wish to render an “off-the-cuff” opinion without the 

benefit of more detailed research and reflection. 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

22. All questions must be directed through the Moderator. You will not be allowed to engage in a 

back and forth dialogue with one particular official. Whenever possible, try to get your 

specific questions answered prior to town meeting. Town meeting should be for debate and 

not for questions and answers. 

 

23. Presentations. If a speaker wants to use a PowerPoint®, videotape, slide, or similar 

presentation requiring lowering the screen on the stage, the proposed presentation must be in 

the hands of the Moderator for her review no less than 72 business hours prior to the town 

meeting, or the Moderator may not allow the presentation. 

 

24. Please put your cell phones and pagers on vibrate or some other silent alarm, so as not to 

disturb the proceedings. 

 

25. Question a Ruling or Vote. Seven (7) or more registered voters may question a ruling or a 

vote declaration of the moderator. The question must be raised immediately and before the 

next action or the next article. For example, if the moderator on a voice vote on the main 

motion declares “the ayes have it, the motion passes”, that ruling must be questioned before 

the next article is drawn by the town clerk and the article number announced by the 

moderator. If an amendment is declared as passed on a voice vote, this declaration must be 

questioned before the next speaker. If a voice vote declaration is questioned, the moderator 

will generally ask the tellers to take a standing counted vote. 

 

26. Lobby Displays. No person shall erect or maintain a table or a display in without approval 

from the Moderator obtained at least 48 hours prior to the town meeting. No display may 

interfere with the free passage of voters to and from the registration table and the entrance to 

the meeting location. The Moderator reserves the right to decline to approve any display that 

they deem to be too large. Also, the size of the lobby limits the total number of displays, 

from three to five in most cases. The doorkeepers, as agents of the moderator and town clerk, 

may require relocation of displays in the lobby if the displays are interfering with the free 

flow of foot traffic. 

Thank you for attending Town Meeting! 

Amy B. Kullar 

Town Meeting Moderator 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

Special Town Meeting 
 

ARTICLE 1:  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available funds including but not 

limited to the Integrated Solid Waste Management (ISWM) Enterprise Fund retained earnings, a sum of money for the 

purpose of funding owner’s project manager (OPM), architectural, engineering and other design services in order to 

develop plans, specifications and estimates (PSE) suitable for public bidding to build a new office and maintenance garage 

building at the ISWM Facility, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

 

MOTION: We move that the Town vote to appropriate the sum of $1,917,000 for the purposes of this article and to meet 

this appropriation to transfer the sum of $1,917,000 from ISWM Retained Earnings. 

 

EXPLANATION 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would approve the expenditure of funds to secure an OPM and Architect to 

design a new office and maintenance garage, and prepare the necessary plans and documents to put the project out for 

public bid. 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that the funds would not be available to design the new building 

and the project would not go forward. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 
  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

Annual Town Meeting 
 

 

ARTICLE 1: To see if the Town will vote to approve each of the following articles, as a single Consent Agenda 

motion pursuant to a single vote, or pass any vote or take any other action relative thereto. 

Sponsor – Select Board  

 

1. Regular Required Authorizations - To see if the Town will vote to approve the following regularly required 

authorizations: 

 

a. Assumption of Liability – to assume liability as specified in Section 1 of Chapter 814 of the Acts of 

1972, in the manner provided by G.L. c. 91, §§ 29 and 29A, as most recently amended, for all 

damages that may be incurred by work performed by the Department of Environmental Protection of 

Massachusetts for the improvement, development, maintenance and protection of tidal and non-tidal 

rivers and streams, great ponds, harbors, tidewaters, foreshores and shores along a public beach, and, 

further, to authorize the Select Board to execute and deliver a bond of indemnity therefore to the 

Commonwealth. 

 

b. Road Contracts -  to authorize the Town Administrator to enter into a contract with the Massachusetts 

Highway Department Commissioner or the Federal Government for the construction and maintenance of 

public highways in the Town of Bourne for the ensuing year.  

 

c. Grant Program Authorization - to authorize the Select Board and/or the Town Administrator to apply for, 

accept and enter into contracts from time to time for the expenditure of any funds allotted to Bourne by 

the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or the U. S. Government under any State or Federal grant program.  

 

d. Contracts in Excess of Three Years - to authorize the Town Administrator or the Superintendent of 

Schools, in accordance with the provisions of  G.L. c. 30B, § 12(b), to solicit and award contracts for 

terms exceeding three years, including any renewal, extension, or option, provided in each instance that 

the term in excess of three years is determined to be in the best interest of the Town by a vote of the 

Select Board (if solicited and awarded by the Town Administrator) or the School Committee (if solicited 

and awarded by the Superintendent). 

  

e. Banking Institution Agreements – to authorize the Treasurer and the Town Collector, pursuant to G.L. c. 

44, § 53F, and with the approval of the Select Board, to enter into agreements with banking institutions 

to maintain deposits in exchange for banking services, for periods not to exceed three years. 

 

f. Medicaid Medical Services Program – to authorize the Select Board, pursuant to G.L. c. 44, § 72, to 

allocate any funds received as part of the Medicaid Medical Services Program to the School Committee 

for use, without further appropriation, for the benefit of educational programs. 

 

2. Elected Officials Salaries - To see if the Town will vote to fix the salaries and compensation of the following 

elected officials of the Town, as provided by G.L. c. 41, § 108, for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2024 

as follows: 

a. Town Moderator: $644 

b. Select Board 4 @ $3,570 for total of $14,280 

c. Select Board (Chair) 1 @ $4,590 for a total of $4,590 

d. Town Clerk: $46,822 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

3. Chapter 90 - To see if the Town will vote to appropriate a sum of money from funds received or to be 

received from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, pursuant to G.L. c. 90, for the construction, 

reconstruction, preservation, maintenance, and improvement of all public ways accepted by the Town, the 

acquisition of easements and other interests in real property related to the laying out of ways, and other 

related costs, which qualify under the State Aid Highway (Chapter 90) guidelines adopted by the Public 

Works’ Commission, said funds to be expended under the direction of the DPW Director, with the approval 

of the Select Board. 

 

4. Revolving Funds - To see if the Town will vote to set the total amount that may be expended from each 

revolving fund established by Article 2.10 of the General Bylaws, pursuant to G.L. c. 44, § 53E½, for the 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, as follows: 

 
Revolving Fund FY 2025 Spending Limit 

Recreation Programs Fund  $   175,000  

Shellfish Propagation Fund  $     75,000  

Transportation Revolving Fund  $     50,000  

Public Library Book Fund  $     20,000  

COA Supportive Day/Bridging the Years  $   100,000  

COA Programs  $   100,000  

Community Building Rental fund  $     10,000  

Tax Title Collection Fund  $     60,000  

 
 $   590,000  

 

5. Accrued Contractual Compensated Absences - To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer 

from available funds, otherwise provide the sum of $100,000 to fund the costs related to payments of 

accrued contractual compensated absences. 

 

 

MOTION: We move that the Town vote to approve the use of a consent agenda including each of the Articles set 

forth in the Warrant in Article 1, and, further, that the Town vote to approve Article 1 as set forth in the Warrant 

and, further, that with respect to Article 1-6, to transfer $100,000 from Free Cash to fund costs related to payments 

for Accrued Contractual Compensated Absences. 

 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

Designated as an Essential Article 

 

 

EXPLANATION 
The items listed in the Consent Agenda reoccur annually and are housekeeping in nature. 

 

 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would approve all the consent articles at one time, and authorizes a 

cost of living allowance (COLA) increase of 2.5% for the Town Clerk.  All other salaries for Elected Officials, 

Revolving Fund Spending Limits, and funding for Accrued Contractual Compensated Absences will remain the 

same as the prior fiscal year. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that Town Meeting would vote on the items 

individually. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 2: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, or otherwise 

provide a sum of money to defray the regular annual expenses of the Town, or take any other action in relation 

thereto. 

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the sum of Seventy Nine Million One Hundred Forty Eight Thousand Nine Hundred 

Fifty Nine Dollars ($79,148,959) be hereby appropriated form the funding sources listed below to defray the 

expenses of the Municipal Town Departments in the chart entitled “These Amounts are to be Voted” as shown 

below for the fiscal year starting on July 1, 2024 to and including June 30, 2025: 

 

 
Funding Sources:  

Raise and Appropriate from the FY25 Tax Levy and other General 

   Revenues from the Town 

$ 76,489,961 

PL874 Grant Funds 125,000 

Ambulance Fund 1,500,000 

Conservation Commission Receipts Reserved for Appropriation 30,000 

Community Preservation Fund Revenues for Debt Expense 260,975 

Community Septic Management Program 10,023 

Waterway Improvement Fund 140,000 

Capital Stabilization for Debt Expense 593,000 

                    - 

Total $ 79,148,959 

  

These Amounts are to be Voted:  
General Government $   4,614,181 

Public Safety 13,232,474 

Public Works 3,540,128 

Health & Human Services 1,031,069 

Culture & Recreation 1,065,186 

Bourne Public Schools 26,652,537 

Upper Cape Cod Regional Technical High School 3,750,754 

Shared Costs 19,329,055 

Debt Service       5,933,575 

Total $ 79,148,959 

 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

Designated as an Essential Article 

 

 

EXPLANATION 
The proposed FY25 budget maintains a level service budget, compared with last year.  There are no new staff 

positions proposed or additional personnel.  Most of the increase is due to contractual increases for both 

employees and service vendors.  There are no new initiatives proposed in this budget. 

 

The proposed appropriations for the FY 2025 Operating Budget is an increase of 2.01% over the previous year’s 

appropriation. 

 

Like prior years, capital stabilization funds are a proposed funding source for the FY 2025 general fund 

budget.  Due to recent legislative changes, the quantum of votes to appropriate funds from a special purpose 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

stabilization fund is now a simple majority, not a two-thirds vote. 

 

This changed was passed in “AN ACT MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 FOR 

SUPPLEMENTING CERTAIN EXISTING APPROPRIATIONS AND FOR CERTAIN OTHER ACTIVITIES 

AND PROJECTS” and became effective December 2023. 

 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would approve the General Fund Operating Budget for FY25 from 

July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that there would be no approved operating budget for 

FY25. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 3: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, or otherwise 

provide a sum of money to operate the Sewer Department, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Board of Sewer Commissioners 

 

MOTION:  We move the sum of $1,601,438 be authorized to be expended by the Sewer Commissioners for the 

operation of the Sewer System for the fiscal year starting on July 1, 2024 to and including June 30, 2025 as 

follows: 

   Salaries & Wages  $   226,050 

   Expenses    $1,275,388 

   Reserve Fund   $   100,000 

 

And we further move that the sum of $161,764 be transferred to the General Fund to offset Sewer Enterprise 

indirect expenses, and in order to meet this appropriation, we move that the sum of $1,613,202 be raised from 

Sewer Enterprise Receipts and $150,000 be transferred from Sewer Retained Earnings. 

 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

Designated as an Essential Article 

 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would approve the sewer enterprise operating budget for FY 2025 

from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that there would be no approved sewer enterprise 

operating budget for FY 2025. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation:  

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 4: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available funds a sum of 

money to operate the Integrated Solid Waste Management Program, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move the sum of $12,289,397 be authorized to be expended for the operation of the Integrated 

Solid Waste Management Department for the fiscal year starting on July 1, 2024 to and including June 30, 2025 

as follows: 

   Salaries & Wages  $2,416,219 

   Expenses    $8,348,178 

   Reserve Fund   $   600,000 

   Host Community Fee  $   925,000 

 

And we further move that the sum of $2,503,413 be transferred to the General Fund to offset ISWM Enterprise 

indirect expenses, and in order to meet this appropriation, we move that the sum of $14,792,810 be raised from 

ISWM Enterprise Receipts. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

Designated as an Essential Article 

 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would approve the ISWM enterprise operating budget for FY 2025 

from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that there would be no approved ISWM enterprise 

operating budget for FY 2025. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 5: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, borrow, or 

otherwise provide a sum of money for the purpose of funding the Fiscal Year 2025 Capital Budget, or take any 

other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Capital Outlay Committee and Select Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to appropriate $4,367,200 to pay costs of the capital outlay projects 

listed in the schedule printed below and to meet this appropriation, we move to: (1) transfer the sum of $978,200 

from Free Cash; (2) transfer the sum of $52,000 from Sewer Retained Earnings; (3) transfer the sum of $1,012,000 

from ISWM Retained Earnings; and (4) transfer the sum of $225,000 from Waterways Improvement Fund.  We 

further move to authorize the Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Board of Selectmen, to borrow the sum of 

$2,100,000 under and pursuant to Chapter 44, Sections 7 of the General Laws as amended and supplemented, or 

any other enabling authority and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor.  Any premium received by the Town 

upon the sale of any bonds or notes approved by this vote, less any such premium applied to the payment of the 

costs of issuance of such bonds or notes, may be applied to the payment of costs approved by this vote in 

accordance with Chapter 44, Section 20 of the General Laws, thereby reducing the amount authorized to be 

borrowed to pay such costs by a like amount. 

 

 

 Capital Budget – Fiscal Year 2025 

 Department Category Purpose Amount Source 

1 Police Transportation ATV replacement $35,000 Free Cash 

2 Police Transportation 5 Police vehicles $434,800 Free Cash 

3 Police Equipment Rifle replacement $147,900 Free Cash 

4 Facilities Infrastructure Town Hall elevator $200,000 Free Cash 

5 Facilities Infrastructure Interior/exterior doors & ADA 

controls 
$70,000 Free Cash 

6 Natural Resources Equipment Replace Y-57 Carolina skiff 60 

HP engine 
$15,500 Free Cash 

7 Public Works Equipment Trash & recycling carts  
$18,000 

ISWM Retained 

Earnings 

8 Public Works Infrastructure Traffic signals at Academy Dr 

& Main St 
$35,000 Free Cash 

9 Public Works Equipment Vehicle refurbishment for 

sanitation & recycling trucks 
$114,000 

ISWM Retained 

Earnings 

10 Schools Equipment BMS compressor replacement $40,000 Free Cash 

11 Schools Planning Jackson Field bleachers design 

& engineering 
$30,000 Free Cash 

12 Schools Infrastructure WWTP repairs $2,100,000 Borrowing 

13 Shore & Harbor Infrastructure Annual Dredging/Ramp/Pier 

Repair $225,000 
Waterways 

Improvement 

Fund 

14 Sewer Transportation Replace M9 – Ford F250 $52,000 Retained Earning 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

12 ISWM Equipment 2020 CAT bulldozer $646,000 Retained Earning 

13 ISWM Infrastructure Replace paper net – East Road $174,000 Retained Earning 

14 ISWM Infrastructure CCTV camera upgrade $60,000 Retained Earning 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

Designated as an Essential Article 

 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would approve the capital expenditures recommended by the Capital 

Outlay Committee for FY 2025. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that the capital expenditures recommended by the 

Capital Outlay Committee would not be funded and these needs would not be addressed in FY 2025. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation:  

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 6: To see if the Town will vote to hear Reports and Recommendations of Committees and Town 

Officers, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to hear reports and recommendations of Committees and Town Officers. 

 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would allow communities to address Town Meeting and provide an 

update on their work. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would not allow the committee representatives to provide a report to 

Town Meeting. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 7: To see if the Town will vote, upon the recommendation of the Community Preservation 

Committee, to appropriate a sum of money to fund a feasibility study to rehabilitate the outdoor recreation areas 

at Pocasset, Chester Park, Keith Field, and Clark Field, and to meet said appropriation, to transfer from available 

funds or reserve from the FY2025 estimated Community Preservation Fund Revenues a sum of money for the 

purposes of this article, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Community Preservation Committee 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote, upon recommendation of the Community Preservation Committee, to 

raise and appropriate and reserve the sum of $150,000 for the outdoor recreation feasibility study, and to transfer 

$150,000 from Open Space/Recreation Reserves. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion provides funding for the proposed project, as recommended by the 

Community Preservation Committee. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion means that the funding would not be provided, and the project cannot 

proceed at this time. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 8: To see if the Town will vote, upon the recommendation of the Community Preservation 

Committee, to appropriate a sum of money to fund construction an all-wheel skate park and to redesign the 

softball field at the Veterans Community Memorial Center, and to meet said appropriation, to transfer from 

available funds or reserve from the FY2025 estimated Community Preservation Fund Revenues a sum of money 

for the purposes of this article, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Community Preservation Committee 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote, upon recommendation of the Community Preservation Committee, to 

raise and appropriate and reserve the sum of $500,000 for the construction of an all-wheel skate park and to 

redesign the softball field at the Veterans Community Memorial Center, and to transfer $500,000 from Open 

Space/Recreation Reserves. 

 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion provides funding for the proposed project, as recommended by the 

Community Preservation Committee. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion means that the funding would not be provided, and the project cannot 

proceed at this time. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 9: To see if the Town will vote, upon the recommendation of the Community Preservation 

Committee, to appropriate a sum of money to fund roof repairs at the Anna’s Pals Beach House for 

Immunocompromised Children (former Hoxie Schoolhouse) and to meet said appropriation, to transfer from 

available funds or reserve from the FY2025 estimated Community Preservation Fund Revenues a sum of money 

for the purposes of this article, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Community Preservation Committee 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote, upon recommendation of the Community Preservation Committee, to 

raise and appropriate and reserve the sum of $135,000 to fund roof repairs at the Anna’s Pals Beach House for 

Immunocompromised Children (former Hoxie Schoolhouse), and to transfer $115,000 from Historic Preservation 

Reserves. 

 

 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion provides funding for the proposed project, as recommended by the 

Community Preservation Committee. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion means that the funding would not be provided, and the project cannot 

proceed at this time. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 10:  To see if the Town will vote, upon the recommendation of the Community Preservation 

Committee, to appropriate a sum of money to fund affordable housing units at 9 Sandwich Road, and to meet 

said appropriation, to transfer from available funds or reserve from the FY2025 estimated Community 

Preservation Fund Revenues a sum of money for the purposes of this article, or take any other action in relation 

thereto: 

Sponsor – Community Preservation Committee 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote, upon recommendation of the Community Preservation Committee, to 

raise and appropriate and reserve the sum of $80,000 to fund affordable housing units at 9 Sandwich Road, and 

to transfer $80,000 from Affordable Housing Reserves. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

 

 

EXPLANATION 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion provides funding for the proposed project, as recommended by the 

Community Preservation Committee. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion means that the funding would not be provided, and the project cannot 

proceed at this time. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 11:  To see if the Town will vote, upon the recommendation of the Community Preservation 

Committee, to appropriate a sum of money for the following Community Preservation Fund purposes, and to 

meet said appropriation, to transfer from available funds or reserve from the FY2025 estimated Community 

Preservation Fund Revenues a sum of money for the purposes of this article, or take any other action in relation 

thereto: 

Sponsor – Community Preservation Committee 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote, upon the recommendation of the Community Preservation Committee, 

to raise and appropriate and reserve the sum of $2,010,354.23 for the Community Preservation Fund Projects 

and Special Purpose Reserves listed in the Community Preservation Fund Committee report as printed below; 

and to meet the appropriations and reserve, to appropriate the sum of $1,681,854.23 from FY2024 Estimated 

CPA Revenues, transfer $29,000 from Historic Preservation Reserves, and transfer $99,500 from Community 

Housing Reserves, and transfer $200,000 from FY2025 Community Housing Revenues. 

 

 

Item Sponsor Project Description CPA Purpose 
Community Preservation Committee 

Recommend 

A 

Cataumet 

Schoolhouse 

Preservation Group 

Cataumet School Fumigation Historic Preservation 
$29,000 from Historic Preservation 

Reserves 

B 
Bourne Affordable 

Housing Trust  

Bourne Affordable Housing 

Services and Support 
Community Housing 

$99,500 from Community Housing 

Reserves 

C 
Bourne Housing 

Authority 

Windswept Acres: Certain 

Repairs to Buildings 78, 79-81, 

80, 82 & 84 Waterhouse Road 

Community Housing 
$200,000 from Community Housing 

Revenues 

   SUBTOTAL REQUESTS $328,500 

D 

Community 

Preservation 

Committee 

Reserve for Open Space Open Space $1,274,597.73 

E 

Community 

Preservation 

Committee 

Reserve for Community 

Housing 
Community Housing $203,628.25 

F 

Community 

Preservation 

Committee 

Reserve for Historic 

Preservation 
Historic Preservation $203,628.25 

   SUBTOTAL RESERVES $1,681,854.23 

2025 Open 

Space/Rec 

Estimated Revenues 

   
TOTAL REQUESTS & 

RESERVES 
$2,010,354.23 

2025 Housing 

Estimated Revenues 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

 

EXPLANATION 
A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion provides funding for the proposed projects, as recommended by the 

Community Preservation Committee. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion means that the funding would not be provided, and the projects 

cannot proceed at this time. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 12: To see if the Town will vote, upon the recommendation of the Community Preservation 

Committee, to appropriate a sum of money for the purposes of the administrative and operating expenses of the 

Community Preservation Committee, or take any other action in relation thereto.   

Sponsor – Community Preservation Committee 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote, upon the recommendation of the Community Preservation Committee, 

to appropriate the sum of $75,000 for the purposes of administrative and operating expenses of the Community 

Preservation Committee for FY 2025 and to meet this appropriation to transfer the sum of $75,000 from the 

Community Preservation Undesignated Fund Balance. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would fund the annual operating and administrative expenses of the 

Community Preservation Committee. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that the CPC would not have funding to pay expenses 

related to administration and regular operations. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 13: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, or otherwise 

provide a sum of money to the Stabilization Fund, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to appropriate the sum of $200,000 for the purposes of this article and 

to meet this appropriation to transfer the sum of $200,000 from free cash. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

Designated as an Essential Article 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

The financial policy guideline for stabilization reserves establishes a target of 6% of General Fund Operating 

Budget expenses to be held in reserve.  At the time of this writing, there has been some market volatility that is 

impacting the Town’s investment revenue in the short term.  By the end of the Fiscal Year, it is anticipated that 

the fund will be within the stated financial policy guideline. 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would authorize additional funds to be placed in the Stabilization 

Fund. 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that no additional funds would be deposited into the 

Stabilization Fund and would not be consistent with stated financial policies. 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 14: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, or otherwise 

provide a sum of money to the Capital Stabilization Fund, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to appropriate the sum of $296,000 for the purposes of this article and 

to meet this appropriation to transfer the sum of $296,000 from free cash. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

Designated as an Essential Article 

EXPLANATION 
 

The goal of the Capital Stabilization Fund is to maintain 3-5 years of debt payments in reserve, and the Town is 

currently exceeding 5-years at the current level of debt service. 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion provides funding to increase the capital stabilization fund.  This will 

help ensure that funds continue to be set aside for the long-term maintenance of the town’s capital assets. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would not provide additional funding for the capital stabilization 

fund, and would not be consistent with stated financial guidelines. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 15: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, or otherwise 

provide a sum of money for the Human Services Grant program, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to appropriate the sum of $20,000 for the purposes of this article and 

to meet this appropriation to transfer the sum of $20,000 from free cash. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

 

EXPLANATION 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would provide funding for the Human Services Grant Program for 

FY 2025, consistent with prior years. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that the Human Services Grant Program would not have 

funds to use in FY 2025. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation:  

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 16: To see if the Town will vote to reduce the size of the Bourne Cultural Council from 11 members 

to 5 members, the minimum required by MGL c. 10, §58, or take any other action in relation thereto.  

Sponsor – Bourne Cultural Council 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would reduce the number of members on the Cultural Council. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would maintain the status quo. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 17: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Bourne Bylaws by deleting all references to 

“thirty (31) days” and all such similar references and replacing the same with “thirty (30) days” or other 

similarly appropriate text, or take any other action in relation thereto.  

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would correct 11 instances of scriveners’ errors in the General 

Bylaw. 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would maintain the status quo and not correct the errors. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 18: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Bourne General Bylaw, Article1.5, Section 

1.5.6, by adding the bolded text and deleting the struck through text as follows: 

 

Section 1.5.6 

Capital Outlay Items Defined.  Any proposed article meeting the definition of a capital outlay item as 

herein defined shall be presented to the Capital Outlay Committee for review as a Capital Outlay item.  

A Capital Outlay item will refer to any activity that meets one or more of the following criteria: 

 

a. The acquisition of land or buildings. 

 

b. The new construction, reconstruction, repair, replacement, or improvement of buildings or other 

public facilities, drainage facilities, streets, sidewalks, parks or improvements of land with a cost in 

excess of $20,000 $25,000. 

 

c. The purchase of major equipment, including motor vehicles, with a cost in excess of $10,000 

$25,000. 

 

or take any other action in relation thereto.  

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would amend the General Bylaw to raise the threshold for a “capital 

project” to at least $25,000. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would maintain the status quo and the threshold would not be 

increased. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 19: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Bourne Wetland Protection Bylaw, Article 

3.7, Section 3.7.9 – Consultant Fees – by adding the bolded text and deleting the struck through text as follows: 

 

Section 3.7.9 

Consultant Fees. The Commission is authorized to impose reasonable fees require the applicant, to pay the 

reasonable costs and expenses borne by the Commission (Town) for specific expert engineering and consultant 

services deemed necessary by the Commission to review the notice of Intent and/or the Request for 

Determination of Applicability, up to a maximum of two thousand and five hundred dollars ($2,500.00). 

 

As provided by MGL Ch. 44 § 53G, the Commission can impose reasonable fees for the employment of 

outside consultants, engaged by the Conservation Commission, for specific expert services deemed 

necessary by the Commission to review the Notice of Intent and/or the Request for Determination of 

Applicability. 

 

Said payment can be required at any point in the deliberations prior to a final decision being rendered. Said 

services may include but are not limited to wetland resource area surveys and delineations, wetland resource 

area reports, hydrogeological and drainage analysis, wildlife evaluation, shellfish surveys, and 

environmental/land-use law. 

 

The Commission is hereby authorized to charge for said fee when the Notice of Intent and/or the Request for 

Determination of Applicability proposes any of the following: 500 square feet or greater alteration of a coastal 

or inland wetland resource area: 50 linear feet or greater of bank alteration to an inland or coastal waterway: 500 

square feet or greater alteration to the buffer zone: alteration of greater than 500 square feet of land under a 

water body or the ocean: discharge of any pollutants into or contributing to surface or groundwater or the 

wetland resource area or buffer zone: or the construction of any detention or retention basin or water control 

structure. Any applicant aggrieved by the imposition of, or the size of, the fee, or any act related thereto, may 

appeal according to the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws. 

 

The applicant has a right to appeal the selection of the outside consultant pursuant to MGL Ch. 44 § 53G.  

 

or take any other action in relation thereto.  

Sponsor – Conservation Commission 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would amend the Wetland Protection Bylaw. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would maintain the status quo and the Wetland Protection Bylaw 

would not be changed. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 20: To see if the Town will vote to accept G.L. c. 10, §38, which authorizes the Select Board to 

grant local approval of beano licenses, or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required: Simple Majority 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would allow the Select Board to issue local licenses. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that the Select Board would not be able to issue any 

local licenses. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 21: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Bourne Zoning Bylaw Section 1238A.4.b Traffic and 

Internal Circulation by deleting “25” as follows: 

 

Where access by fire vehicles or other large trucks is not anticipated, access adequacy shall reflect consistency 

with the performance intent of the geometric standards of Subdivision Regulations of the Bourne Planning 

Board and the fire equipment access requirements of 527 CMR 25. 

 

or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Planning Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required: 2/3 Supermajority 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

This article is to amend section 1238A.4.b of the Zoning Bylaw relative to Site Plan Review for traffic and 

internal circulation for fire equipment access.  The amendment would delete “25” from the “527 CMR 25.”  

Several years ago the Massachusetts Fire Code was rearranged and chapter 25 is not chapter 18.  It is 

recommended to delete the chapter language and keep the CMR to encompass the entire fire code. 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would amend the Zoning Bylaw. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would maintain the status quo and the Zoning Bylaw would not be 

changed. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 22: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Bourne Zoning Bylaw Section 1242.1 by deleting the 

word “two” and replacing with “three” as follows: 

 

1242.1 Enforcement:  Any Site Plan – Special Permit approval issued under this section shall lapse within 

three two years if a substantial completion of the requirements of the Site Plan has not taken place.  Such permit 

may be extended for reasonable cause. 

 

or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Planning Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required: 2/3 Supermajority 

 

EXPLANATION 

 

Under the current Zoning Bylaw, a special permit lapses within two years if substantial completion of the 

project has not taken place.  This article would change from a two year to a three year timeframe for consistency 

with Chapter 40A of the Zoning Act. 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would amend the Zoning Bylaw. 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would maintain the status quo and the bylaw would not change. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 23: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Bourne Zoning Bylaw Section 3343 Interim Egress 

Control by deleting “Until June 1, 2020, or, if earlier” as follows: 

 

3343. Interim Egress Control.  Until June 1, 2020, or, if earlier, u Until opening of a limited-access highway 

connecting the Mid-Cape Highway (Route 6) with MacArthur Boulevard (Route 28) or Route 25, all 

development in the Traffic Management District shall be subject to the following: 

 

a) Access separation.  No new street, driveway, or other means of vehicular access to an arterial 

street shall be created unless it is separated from all other means of vehicular access on the 

same side of the street by at least 1,000 feet, measured centerline to centerline along the edge 

of the street right-of-way, unless granted a special permit under Section 3344 authorizing 

less separation. However, each lot or set of contiguous lots held in ownership separate from 

that of all abutting land as of the date of adoption of this provision shall be allowed a single 

access to an abutting arterial street, provided that the access shall be located so as to 

minimize movement conflicts with all other accesses to the same road. 

 

b) Land division and sale.  No land in the Traffic Management District shall hereafter be 

divided into separate lots or ownerships unless each resulting building lot will be entitled to 

vehicular access under these provisions, through one or more of the following: 

 

-   having location and configuration making it feasible to meet the requirements of Section 

3343(a), or  

 

- having an alternative means of access, such as an authorized shared driveway (see Section 

3342), or  

 

- having frontage on a non-arterial street, or  

 

- having been granted a special permit under the provisions of Section 3344. 

 

c) Other requirements.  The standards of the table in Section 3341 (except for the required 

driveway centerline separation) must be met by all uses, regardless of trip generation level. 

 

or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Planning Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required: 2/3 Supermajority 

EXPLANATION 

 

This article would remove the expired sunset date from the Interim Egress Control section.  The purposes of this 

section is to aid in reducing the impacts of new access points on Scenic Highway and Sandwich Road until the 

opening of a limited-access highway connecting Route 6 with MacArthur Boulevard or Route 25.  Both Scenic 

Highway and Sandwich Road are impacted significantly by traffic and new access points should be limited.  

This section was originally adopted in 1996 with an original expiration date of 2006, and extended to 2020. 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would amend the Zoning Bylaw. 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would maintain the status quo and the Zoning Bylaw would not 

change. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 24: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Bourne Zoning Bylaw Section 2821 Downtown 

District Table of Allowable Uses (DTD-1) Functional Standards and Special Permit Criteria for a Home 

Occupation Office Use by deleting “4120” in its entirety and replacing the same with “4110” as follows: 

 

OFFICE USES     

Veterinary Clinic/Animal 

Hospital 
SP 

Animal hospitals shall not be located closer than one 

hundred (100) feet to any residential property, restaurant or 

hotel. All animals must be housed overnight in completely 

enclosed buildings. The SPGA may stipulate that 

appropriate sound mitigation devices be installed and that 

fences, walls, and/or vegetation be installed to screen the 

site where animals will be maintained out of doors. 

Home Occupation.   SP See Section 4110 4120 

Professional Office  P See Section 2827 

 

or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Planning Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required: 2/3 Supermajority 

 

EXPLANATION 
 

A “Home Occupation” is listed as a use in the Downtown District.  The functional standards and special permit 

criteria for the home occupation had an incorrect section reference for the home occupation as “4120,” however, 

the correct section is “4110.” 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would amend the Zoning Bylaw. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would maintain the status quo and the Zoning Bylaw would not 

change. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 25:  To see if the Town will vote to amend the Bourne Zoning Bylaw as follows: 

Section 2220 Use Regulation Schedule; section 4120-4123 Accessory Dwelling; section 2821 Downtown 

District Table of Allowable Uses (Table DTD-1); section 2853 Table of Required Parking Spaces (Table DTD-

3); and section V Definitions.  

Amend the following sections: 

2220.  Use Regulation Schedule  

  

DISTRICT  

R-40 

R-80 

V-B 

B-1 

B-2 

B-4 

 

B-3 

 

GD 

ACCESSORY USES 

Accessory dwelling (See Section 4120) 

 

Yes 
 

BA 

 

Yes 
 

BA 

 

Yes 
 

BA 

No No 

(BA = Board of Appeals) 

  

4120.  Accessory Dwelling.  

The purpose of the accessory dwelling bylaw is to broaden the range of housing choice by 

increasing the number of small dwelling units available in Bourne’s housing supply. The Building 

Commissioner/Chief Zoning Enforcement Office shall administer and enforce the provisions of 

this section. A special permit authorizing one. An accessory dwelling may be granted only if consistent 

with the following:  

 

4121.  Development Requirements. 

a) One accessory dwelling is permitted as a by right use to a lawful single-family use 

on the same lot. In conformance with Section 2450. 

 

b) Septic capacity or sewerage deemed satisfactory. The Board of Health must have 

documented to the Board of Appeals that sewage disposal will be satisfactorily provided 

for, including provision for an appropriate reserve area on the site. 

 

c) Parking as required at per Section 3320 shall be provided either in a garage or 

designated area on paved surfaces not located within any required yard. One parking 

space shall be designated per bedroom.  Refer to section 2853 for parking 

requirements in the Downtown District (DTD). 

 

d) Minimum lot size is 5,000 square feet. Less than 5,000 square feet requires 

conformance with section 2450. 

 

e) The maximum size of an accessory dwelling is 1,500 square feet and contains no 

more than two bedrooms. 

 

f) An ADU is attached or detached to the primary structure and designed to 

maximize the appearance of a single-family residential property. It is subordinate 

to and no greater than 50% of the existing primary single-family dwelling floor 

area calculated as first floor, second floor, basements 50% above-grade, attics over 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

6'6" floor to ceiling height, and garages.  

 

g) The following types of properties or developments are not eligible for an accessory 

dwelling: deed restricted affordable housing units; all lots developed under a 

Comprehensive Permit (Chapter 40B); lots with more than one single-family 

dwelling unit; and lots created under section 4600 Open Space Community. 

 

h) Accessory dwelling units lawfully created prior to adoption of this section may 

continue to be used, maintained, and occupied. 

  

4122.  Occupancy Requirements 

a) Either the principal or the accessory unit must be owner-occupied. , except for temporary 

absences. Fractional ownership is prohibited.    

 

b) An accessory unit dwelling and primary dwelling authorized under these provisions 

shall not be used for short-term rental, summer rental, boarding and lodging, or other 

commercial use except for a home occupation according to Section 4110.  

 

c) The ADU and primary dwelling may not be rented for periods shorter than 90 days 

at a time, and are prohibited from any use as rental units on a weekly or daily basis.  

 

d) The primary dwelling and ADU must remain in common ownership which cannot 

be severed. 

 

4123.  Procedural Requirement 

a) To approve a special permit for an Accessory Dwelling, the Board of Appeals must make a determination that 

all of the above requirements have been met, and also that the particular circumstances of the case make such use 

appropriate, including consideration of whether lot area or other site characteristics assure mitigation of any 

impacts on the neighborhood, whether there is enforceable assurance that occupancy of the unit will serve 

significant community purposes, such as facilitating care for the elderly or handicapped, or providing housing at 

unusually low cost, and whether site and building design will effectively avoid any departure from the character 

of the neighborhood.  

 

b) A Certificate of Occupancy for an Accessory Dwelling shall be issued for a period no greater than three years. 

Continued occupancy beyond that shall require a new Certificate of Occupancy, to be granted only upon 

documentation to the Inspector of Buildings that the relationships satisfying Section 4122 or on which the decision 

under paragraph a) was based are still in existence. 

 

c) Upon termination of occupancy satisfying Section 4122, or a condition of the special permit, separate 

occupancy of the accessory dwelling shall not be reestablished unless a new special permit is granted, on grounds 

that either the requirements of Section 4122 and the original special permit will again be satisfied, or that special 

circumstances of the structure or its occupants would make single-family occupancy a hardship, and that the 

granting of such Special Permit would not be detrimental to the neighborhood. 

 

d) A Certificate of Compliance with the above paragraph must be provided by the owner to the Inspector of 

Buildings upon transfer of any beneficial interest in the property, and recorded at the Registry of Deeds.  

 

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

2820.  ALLOWABLE USES  

2821. Table of Allowable Uses 

 The Table of Allowable Uses (Table DTD-1) establishes the uses that are permitted by right (P), 

by Special Permit (SP), or not permitted (N) in the Downtown District (DTD).  For all uses allowed 

by Special Permit in the Downtown Zoning Districts, the Planning Board shall be the Special 

Permit Granting Authority (SPGA). 

 

TABLE DTD-1: ALLOWABLE USES IN THE DOWNTOWN DISTRICT 
LAND USE 

CLASSIFICATION 

PERMITTED 

BY: 

FUNCTIONAL STANDARDS AND SPECIAL PERMIT 

CRITERIA 

RESIDENTIAL USES     

Accessory Dwelling 

Apartment Unit 
P 

SP 

See Section 2827 (except subdistrict DTN see 

Section 4120) 

 

2853. Table of Required Parking Spaces  

Where on-site or controlled parking is necessary and required, the applicant shall provide at a 

minimum the amount required in the table below.  This reduced parking requirement compared to 

Section 3300 of the Zoning Bylaw recognizes the availability and broad distribution of existing 

public parking and the pedestrian characteristics of the Downtown District.  

 

TABLE DTD-3: REQUIRED PARKING SPACES IN THE DOWNTOWN 

DISTRICT 

TYPE OF USE REQUIRED PARKING 

RESIDENTIAL USES 

Accessory d Dwelling or Live/Work Unit Minimum of 1 space per dwelling unit 

 

SECTION V     D E F I N I T I O N S 
In this Bylaw the following terms, unless a contrary meaning is required by the context or is specifically prescribed, 

shall have the following meanings. 

 

Accessory Building 
A building devoted exclusively to an accessory use as herein defined, and not attached to a primary principal 

building by any roofed structure. 

 

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) 

A subsidiary dwelling unit created as an extension to an existing single-family dwelling.  incorporated within 

a lawful primary single-family dwelling or as a detached accessory building and on the same lot as a lawful 

primary single-family dwelling use.  This definition does not include a mobile home trailer, however 

mounted.   
 

Accessory Use 

A use customarily incidental to, and on the same lot as, a principal primary use and occupying less than 30% 

of the habitable gross floor area on the premises and less than 50% of the lot area. This definition does not 

include ADUs.   

 

Dwelling Unit 

A building or portion of a building suitable for living quarters for a single family, having a single set of kitchen 

facilities (a stove plus either or both in addition to either a refrigerator and or a kitchen sink) not shared with 

any other unit; or quarters for up to six persons in a lodging house, dormitory, congregate housing, or similar 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

group dwelling.  

 

Fractional ownership 

The cost of an asset or property is split among individuals, corporate entities/trusts, each getting a share. 

 

or take any other action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Planning Board 

 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required: 2/3 Supermajority 

EXPLANATION 
 

One of the zoning strategies identified in the Town of Bourne Local Comprehensive Plan and Housing 

Production Plan is to revise the current Accessory Dwelling Bylaw and encourage the creation of “in-law” 

and/or year-round accessory dwellings that can provide significant year-round housing opportunities for 

residents.  An accessory dwelling unit (ADU) is a separate unit within an owner-occupied home, typically as 

part of a surplus space in a single-family home.  ADUs are separate from the principal dwelling and have their 

own kitchen, bathroom, and living facilities. 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would amend the Zoning Bylaw. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would maintain the status quo and the Zoning Bylaw would not be 

changed. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 26:  To see if the Town will vote to (a) authorize the Select Board to acquire by purchase, gift, or 

eminent domain, the fee and/or permanent and/or temporary easements and/or other real property interests, for 

the purposes of establishing, constructing, operating, and maintaining a shared use path for non-motorized 

transportation, open space, and recreation purposes and for all other purposes for which shared use paths are 

now or hereafter may be used in the Commonwealth, including, without limitation, for the construction, 

installation, maintenance, improvement, repair, replacement, and/or relocation of rights of way, sidewalks, 

drainage, utilities, driveways, guardrails, slopes, grading, rounding, landscaping, parking areas, and other 

appurtenances and/or facilities, to enable the Town to undertake the Bourne Rail Trail – Phase 1 Project, and for 

any and all purposes incidental or related thereto, in, on, over, across, under, and along all or any portion of the 

certain parcels of land located on or near the railroad right of way, running from Monument Neck Road at 

Presidents Road to the intersection with the Cape Cod Canal Bike Path at the Railroad Bridge, and 

approximately shown on a plan entitled “Massachusetts Department of Transportation Highway Division, Plan 

and Profile of Bourne Rail Trail – Phase 1 in the Town of Bourne, Barnstable County, Preliminary Right of Way 

Plans,” dated October 6, 2020, prepared by Green Seal Environmental, Inc., a copy of which is on file with the 

Town Clerk, and as may be amended and/or incorporated into an easement plan(s); and (b) transfer the care, 

custody, management, and control of a portion or portions of the Town-owned property or properties shown on 

the aforesaid plan from the board having the custody of the same for the purposes for which such properties are 

currently held to the Select Board for roadway purposes and for purposes of a shared use path and purposes 

incidental to the use thereof, and further to dedicate said portions of Town-owned properties to the foregoing 

purposes; and (c) raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, and/or borrow a sum of money in support 

of the foregoing project and any and all costs incidental or related thereto, including but not limited to the cost 

of any easement acquisitions, appraisals, and survey; and further (d) to authorize the Select Board to enter into 

all agreements and take any and all actions as may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate the foregoing 

purposes, or take any action relative thereto.  

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required:  

EXPLANATION 
 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would allow the Select Board to acquire the necessary easements to 

construct the Rail Trail. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that the Town could not acquire the easements and 

could not move forward with construction. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

ARTICLE 27: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board, on its behalf, to petition the General 

Court for passage of a special law regarding a permanent easement from the Division of Capital Asset 

Maintenance and Management on land under the care and custody of the Massachusetts Armory Commission 

and identified on Bourne Assessor’s map as Parcel 181 on Map 19.4, and referenced at Barnstable County 

Registry of Deeds at Book 877, Pages 67 and 68, for purpose of replacing a subsurface municipal water line and 

all necessary supporting appurtenances and consistent with the terms of the temporary license originally granted 

in January 2019, and further, to authorize Town Officials to take any action in relation thereto. 

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

MOTION:  We move that the Town vote to approve this article as set forth in the Warrant. 

 

Vote Required:  
 

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would allow the Town to file special legislation to acquire a utility 

easement from the Commonwealth to serve the newly constructed Police Station. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that the Town could not seek the necessary easement 

from the state. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 28:  To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to convey an easement in a portion of 

the land under or near Worcester Ave., approximately 262 square feet, or less or more, as more specifically 

described in the plan on file with the Town Clerk's Office titled "Exhibit 'A' Plan Sewage Disposal System 

Easement in Bourne, MA, Prepared for Town of Bourne, Monument Avenue," prepared by Bracken 

Engineering, Inc. and dated March 21, 2024, said easement to be used for a sewage disposal for the benefit of 

the parcel known and numbered as 1 Monument Ave., upon such terms and conditions as the Select Board may 

deem to be in the Town's best interests or take any other action relative thereto. 

 

MOTION: We move to authorize the Select Board to convey an easement in a portion of the land under or near 

Worcester Ave., approximately 262 square feet, or less or more, as more specifically described in the plan on 

file with the Town Clerk's Office titled "Exhibit 'A' Plan Sewage Disposal System Easement in Bourne, MA, 

Prepared for Town of Bourne, Monument Avenue," prepared by Bracken Engineering, Inc. and dated March 21, 

2024, said easement to be used for a sewage disposal system for the benefit of the parcel known and numbered 

as 1 Monument Ave., upon such terms and conditions as the Select Board may deem to be in the Town's best 

interests. 

 

Vote Required:  

EXPLANATION 
 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would allow the Select Board to grant an easement to the 

homeowner so that they could build a portion of their septic system in the public road layout. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that the homeowner could not use any are located within 

the public road layout to construct a new septic system. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 29: Remove a portion of Shore Rd. property from Article 97 protection to build a fire station. 

Sponsor – Select Board 

 

MOTION:   

 

Vote Required: 2/3 Supermajority 

EXPLANATION 
 

 

A YES or AYE vote in favor of the motion would allow the Town to file special legislation to remove a portion 

of land from Article 97 conservation protection in order to use it for a future fire station. 

 

 

A NO or NAY vote opposed to the motion would mean that the Town could not pursue using the property as a 

fire station. 

 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation: 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

 

 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

Appendix A 
 

Finance Committee Roll Call Votes 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

Appendix B  

 
Fiscal Year 2025 Operating Budgets 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

Appendix C 

 
Fiscal Year 2025 Capital Budget 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

Appendix D 

 
Supporting Information 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



March 28, 2024 DRAFT 

 

 

Appendix E 

 

Bourne Rule 

 

Annual Town Meeting  

May 6, 2024 

 
 

RESOLUTION – BOURNE RULE 

 
Ms. Moderator, on behalf of the Select Board, I move the following Resolution: 

 

RESOLUTION: Be It Resolved that, at the commencement of this annual town meeting, the 

Moderator shall ask the Finance Committee and the Board of Selectmen to certify whether or 

not the total of all Finance Committee funding recommendations on all matters to be voted at 

the May 6, 2024 annual town meeting, and contained in the warrant for this town meeting if 

voted are equal to the maximum property tax levy limit for the Town of Bourne established 

by law for FY 2025. If the answer is in the negative, the Finance Committee and the Select 

Board shall certify the dollar amount which exceeds the Finance Committee dollar 

recommendations on all of the articles in the warrant, but is less than the maximum tax levy 

limit, which certified dollar amount shall be available for appropriation by this annual town 

meeting. If the answer is in the affirmative, then during this annual town meeting any motion 

to raise and appropriate funds in order to increase any appropriation recommended by the 

Finance Committee must state an equal dollar reduction in another recommended 

appropriation or appropriations. A recommendation of indefinite postponement by the 

Finance Committee shall be construed as a zero dollar funding recommendation. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

SELECT BOARD 



1 
 

South Side Fire Station – Talking Points – meetings Week of April 1  

• Taking conservation land out of Article 97 protection should be considered an “option of last 
resort.”  The Town has spent the previous 5-years searching for an appropriate site to build a 
new fire station. 

o 3 RFPs issued  
 August 2021: 1 response for “motor way” was received – the lots for sale only 

had frontage on a paper street – no real access to the road network. 
 October 2022: 1 response for “motor way” was received – the lots for sale 

included frontage on MacArthur Blvd this time – owner ended negotiations and 
withdrew the offer to sell. 

 February 2023: 1 response received – land was located outside of the response 
time area by a considerable distance – not recommended for a fire station 
location. 

 All RFPs were publically advertised – newspaper, ComBuys, Central Register, and 
were put into the hands of property owners who expressed interest previously, 
or who own property in key locations. 

o Approximately 19 sites reviewed and discussed over the years – all were eventually 
ruled out for various reasons, including rebuilding at both the existing Fire Stations 
(Pocasset and Monument Beach). 
 Town Forest – County Rd. 
 Conservation Land – Shore Rd. 
 County Land – Dr. Julius Kelly 
 Water District  County Rd 
 111 Barlows Landing  
 79 Barlows Landing 
 226 Barlows Landing Rd 
 683 County Rd 
 315 Barlows Landing Rd. 
 117 Barlows Landing Rd 
 169 Clay Pond Rd 
 Motor Way 
 Henry Dr 
 30 Barlows Landing – Santander Bank 
 790 Macarthur Blvd – Campbell’s Boat Yard 
 14 Thomas Philbrick Rd. 
 420 Shore Road 
 50 Portside Dr 
 Northbound Macarthur Blvd by State DOT barn 

 
o NOTE: Site selection matrix is attached showing analysis of some of the parcels. 

 
• The Fire Department engaged a professional consultant to conduct a response time study to 

help determine where to locate the new station.   
o The Shore Road property allows for a 4-minute (or less) response to 69.8% of the calls 

for service and allows for an 8-minute (or less) response to 96.6% of the calls for service. 



2 
 

o Clearly responding to calls in a town with a canal and 2 congested bridges provides an 
added layer of complexity and challenge to responding to emergency calls. 
 

o NOTE: the map showing the 4-minute response (yellow area); and 8-minute response 
(green area) and a slide showing some of the factors to consider when siting a station 
are attached. 
 

• Required actions that will need to be taken over the upcoming months 
o Environmental Resource studies and surveys – we have to understand the ecological 

value of the land that is proposed to come out of Article 97 protection. 
o Mitigation land will need to be identified or acquired – we are actively working on 

finding an equal amount of land to put into Article 97 protection, so the end result will 
be no net loss of protected open space. 

o If successful at Town Meeting – special legislation will need to be filed with the state 
legislature 

o Will need to comply with all requirements of the Executive Office of Energy and 
Environmental Affairs. 

o The Conservation Commission will need to vote unanimously to approve the plan to 
remove the area from Article 97 protection. 
 

• The need for new stations is acute.  The current stations are no longer able to provide adequate 
service. 

o The Pocasset station is closed and out of service.  The apparatus bay floor has failed and 
cannot support the weight of the trucks.  The living quarters are unfit for habitation. 

o The Monument Beach station does not contain living quarters – crews are housed in a 
temporary trailer.  The station is severely undersized and obsolete.  The Town had to 
make expensive and difficult modifications to the door headers to fit the new 
ambulance in the existing station. 







Scenario 1: 
Shore Road 

Ball Field



Key Considerations 
in Bourne?

• Significant area of land is outside the 
department’s responsibility.

• Canal bisects the community.

• Population centers both north and south 
of the canal – calls are ~ 50% N/S.

• Road network has strengths and 
challenges.

• Hospital locations impact ”refill” rate for 
medical calls.

• EMS calls drive workload.







Town of Bourne Shore Road Parcel



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS 
 

EOEA ARTICLE 97 LAND DISPOSITION POLICY 
FEBRUARY 19, 1998 

 
 

I. Statement of Policy 
 
It is the policy of EOEA and its agencies to protect, preserve and enhance all open space 
areas covered by Article 97 of the Article of Amendment to the Constitution of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  Accordingly, as a general rule, EOEA and its agencies 
shall not sell, transfer, lease, relinquish, release, alienate, or change the control or use of any 
right or interest of the Commonwealth in and to Article 97 land.  The goal of this policy is to 
ensure no net loss of Article 97 lands under the ownership and control of the Commonwealth 
and its political subdivisions.  Exceptions shall be governed by the conditions included in this 
policy.  This policy supersedes all previous EOEA Article 97 land disposition policies. 
 
An Article 97 land disposition is defined as a) any transfer or conveyance of ownership or 
other interests; b) any change in physical or legal control; and c) any change in use, in and to 
Article 97 land or interests in Article 97 land owned or held by the Commonwealth or its 
political subdivisions, whether by deed, easement, lease or any other instrument effectuating 
such transfer, conveyance or change.  A revocable permit or license is not considered a 
disposition as long as no interest in real property is transferred to the permittee or licensee, 
and no change in control or use that is in conflict with the controlling agency’s mission, as 
determined by the controlling agency, occurs thereby. 
 
II. Conditions for Disposition Exceptions 
 
EOEA and its agencies shall not support an Article 97 land disposition unless EOEA and its 
agencies determine that exceptional circumstances exist.  A determination of ‘exceptional 
circumstances” is subject to all of the following conditions being met: 
 

1. all other options to avoid the Article 97 disposition have been explored and no 
feasible and substantially equivalent alternatives exist (monetary considerations 
notwithstanding). 
Note: The purpose of evaluating alternatives is to avoid using/affecting Article 
97 land to the extent feasible.  To that end, the scope of alternatives under 
consideration shall be commensurate with the type and size of the proposed 
disposition of Article 97 land, and must be performed by the proponent of the 
disposition to the satisfaction of EOEA and its agencies.  The scope of 
alternatives extends to any sits that were available at the time the proponent of 
the Article 97 disposition first notified the controlling agency of the Article 97 
land, and which can be reasonably obtained: (a) within the appropriate market 
area for private proponents, state and/or regional entities; or (b) within the 
appropriate city/town for municipal proponents. 

2. the disposition of the subject parcel and its proposed use do not destroy or 
threaten a unique or significant resource (e.g., significant habitat, rare or unusual 
terrain, or areas of significant public recreation), as determined by EOEA and its 
agencies; 



Article 97 Land Disposition Policy 
February 19, 1998 

Page 2 of 3 

3. as part of the disposition, real estate of equal or greater fair market value or value 
in use of proposed use, whichever is greater, and significantly greater resource 
value as determined by EOEA and its agencies, are granted to the disposing 
agency or its designee, so that the mission and legal mandate of EOEA and its 
agencies and the constitutional rights of the citizens of Massachusetts are 
protected and enhanced;  

4. the minimum acreage necessary for the proposed use is proposed for disposition 
and, to the maximum extent possible, the resources of the parcel proposed for 
disposition continue to be protected; 

5. the disposition serves an Article 97 purpose or another public purpose without 
detracting from the mission, plans, policies and mandates of EOEA and its 
appropriate department or division; and 

6. the disposition of a parcel is not contrary to the express wishes of the person(s) 
who donated or sold the parcel or interests therein to the Commonwealth. 

 
 
 

III. Procedures for Disposition 
 
Although legislation can be enacted to dispose of Article 97 land without the consent of an 
EOEA agency, it is the policy of EOEA to minimize such occurrences.  To that end, and to 
ensure coordination, EOEA agencies shall: 
 

1. develop an internal review process for any potential Article 97 land disposition to 
ensure that, at a minimum, the conditions in Section II above are met; 

2. develop, through the Interagency Lands Committee, a joint listing of all requests, 
regardless of their status, for the disposition of Article 97 land; 

3. notify the Interagency Lands Committee of any changes to the Article 97 land 
disposition list; 

4. monitor all legislation that disposes of Article 97 land, and communicate with 
legislative sponsors regarding their intent; 

5. recommend to the Secretary that the Governor veto any legislation that disposes 
of Article 97 land, the purchase, improvement, or maintenance of which involved 
state funds, on and for which the EOEA agency has not been consulted and 
received documentation (including information on title, survey, appraisal, and a 
MEPA review, all at the proponent’s expense); 

6. obtain the concurrence of the Secretary of EOA for any proposed Article 97 land 
disposition decision prior to finalizing said decision; 

7. if recommending an Article 97 disposition, attach to all Article 97 legislative 
recommendations and TR-1 forms a justification of the disposition and an 
explanation of how it complies with this policy, signed by the EOEA agency 
head; 

8. ensure that any conditions approved by EOEA and its agencies to any Article 97 
land disposition are incorporated within the surplus declaration statement 
submitted to and published by DCPO as required by M.G.L. C. 7, §40F and 
40F1/2 and throughout the disposition process, and if such conditions are not 
incorporated in said statement throughout the disposition process, the EOEA 
agency head shall recommend to the Secretary that the Governor veto any 
resulting legislation; 

9. recommend to the Secretary that the Governor veto legislation that disposes of 
Article 97 land of which the agency disapproves; and 



Article 97 Land Disposition Policy 
February 19, 1998 

Page 3 of 3 

10. ensure that any Article 97 land disposition is authorized by enacted legislation 
and approved by all municipal, state and federal agencies, authorities, or other 
governmental bodies so required and empowered by law prior to conveyance. 

 
IV. Applicability of the Policy to Municipalities 

 
To comply with this policy, municipalities that seek to dispose of any Article 97 land must: 

1. obtain a unanimous vote of the municipal Conservation Commission that the 
Article 97 land is surplus to municipal, conservation and open space needs; 

2. obtain a unanimous vote of the municipal Park Commission if the land proposed 
for disposition is parkland; 

3. obtain a two-thirds Town Meeting or City Council vote in support of the 
disposition; 

4. obtain two-thirds vote of the legislature in support of the disposition, as required 
under the state constitution; 

5. comply with all requirements of the Self-Help, Urban Self-Help, Land and Water 
Conservation Fund, and any other applicable funding sources; and 

6. comply with EOEA Article 97 Land Disposition Policy [note: the municipality 
must also file an Environmental Notification Form with EOEA’s MEPA office]. 

 
After the effective date of this policy, any municipality that proposes, advocates, supports or 
completes a disposition of Article 97 land without also following the terms of this policy, 
regardless of whether or not state funds were used in the acquisition of the Article 97 land, shall 
not be eligible for grants offered by EOEA or its agencies until the municipality has complied 
with this policy.  Compliance with this policy by municipalities shall be determined by the EOEA 
Secretary, based on recommendations by the EOEA Interagency Lands Committee. 
 
       
 

Trudy Coxe, Secretary 
      Executive Office of Environmental Affairs 



1 
 

Guidance on Public Lands Preservation Act Implementation 

February 2023 

The enactment of An Act Preserving Open Space in the Commonwealth (Ch. 274 of the Acts of 
2022, codified at M.G.L. c. 3, § 5A), also known as the Public Lands Preservation Act and 
referred to herein as the Act or the PLPA, established in statute requirements and a process for 
submission to the Legislature of petitions to authorize the use for another purpose or disposition 
of land or an interest in land subject to Article 97 of the Amendments to the Constitution of the 
Commonwealth (Art. 97). Under this Act, the Executive Office of Energy and Environmental 
Affairs (EEA) must receive alternatives analyses and consider requests for waivers or 
modifications of the replacement land requirement or the payment of money in lieu of providing 
replacement land.    

This document is intended to aid the public in understanding and complying with the new law. 
However, in doing so, this document is not to be construed as encouraging the use for another 
purpose or disposition of land protected by Art. 97. EEA and its agencies will not authorize, 
approve or support a change in use or disposition unless in accordance with the EEA Article 97 
Policy.  This document is not intended to, may not be relied upon to, and does not create any 
right, benefit or duty, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or equity by any party in any 
matter, civil, criminal or administrative. This guidance shall not be construed to create any right 
to judicial review involving the compliance or noncompliance of EEA, its agencies, its officers 
or employees, or any other person with this guidance. 

 

Applicability: 

The Act applies to land or interests in land held by public entities for Art. 97 purposes1 including 
EEA and other state agencies, municipalities, boards and commissions, quasi-public agencies, 
and other public instrumentalities and subdivisions of the Commonwealth. Any proponent of a 
change in use or disposition of land or interests in land subject to Art. 97 must comply with the 
Act. In some cases, this is the public entity with care and control of the Art. 97 land. However, 
many proposals to dispose or change the use of Art. 97 land are made by public or private parties 
other than the public entity with care and control of the land. In such cases, the party seeking the 
disposition or change in use (the proponent) will be expected to submit required information 
(including documentation of consultation with the public entity with care and control of the land) 
and undertake other actions necessary for the disposition or change in use to comply with the 
PLPA. 

 
1 “Public entity” is defined in the Act as “the commonwealth, any agency, authority, board, bureau, commission, 
committee, council, county, department, division, institution, municipality, officer, quasi-public agency, public 
instrumentality or any subdivision thereof.” 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/Constitution#amendmentArticleXLVIII
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/Constitution#amendmentArticleXLVIII


2 
 

The Act applies to any change in use or disposition of land or interests in land subject to Art. 97. 
A change in use or disposition (referred to herein as an “Art. 97 Action”) means, and the PLPA 
applies to, any of the following when related to land or interests in land protected by Art. 97:  

1. transfer or conveyance of ownership or another property interest, whether by deed, 
easement, lease or any other instrument effectuating such transfer or conveyance;  

2. change in physical or legal control; or 
3. change in use of the land.  

EEA does not consider the issuance of a revocable permit or license of limited duration a 
disposition of land subject to Art. 97 or the PLPA, provided that: 

1. no interest in land is transferred to the permittee or licensee, and  
2. the permit or license does not authorize a change in use of the land. 

Key requirements for Art. 97 Actions a proponent must comply with include: (i) notification; (ii) 
an alternatives analysis; and (iii) identification and dedication of replacement land to Art. 97 
purposes. In certain cases, the replacement land requirement may be waived or modified by the 
Secretary of EEA, or provision of funding may be authorized in lieu of replacement land. Each 
of these requirements is addressed below in more detail. 

 

Submission and Review Process: 

EEA has created a PLPA website and Portal to enable proponents subject to the Act to meet 
certain obligations under the Act. Proponents must use the PLPA Portal to notify EEA of 
proposed Art. 97 Actions and to make submissions required under the Act, including: (i) the 
alternatives analysis, (ii) requests for the Secretary to waive or modify the replacement land 
requirement, and (iii) requests for the Secretary to make required findings with respect to the 
provision of funding in lieu of replacement land. Prior to making any submission, proponents 
must engage in discussions with the public entity with care and control of the involved Art. 97 
land. 

Submissions via the PLPA Portal also must include information needed for EEA, the public 
entity that has care and control of the Art. 97 land, and the Legislature to review proposed Art. 
97 legislation, such as documentation of the location and ownership of the affected and 
replacement land.  The information required will vary based on the type of project and the 
materials available to the proponent.  The Portal guides users through a series of fields that 
gather required information. More detail on the information and documentation to be submitted 
is provided in this guidance below.  

EEA will review submissions to determine consistency with the Act and with EEA’s Article 97 
Policy. Based on this review, the Secretary will make requested determinations and findings on 
waivers, modifications, and in lieu funding proposals. EEA will post on the PLPA website all 
waivers or modifications granted by the Secretary and all findings reported to the Legislature on 
proposals to provide funding in lieu of replacement land. These determinations or findings shall 



3 
 

not be construed as support for the proposed disposition or change of use by EEA or the public 
entity with care and control of the Art. 97 land, or such public entity’s agreement with the 
determinations or findings, or the proposed Art. 97 Action. 

 

Notification: 

The Act requires proponents of an Art. 97 Action to notify the public and the Secretary of EEA 
of the Art. 97 Action and to make public the alternatives analysis submitted to the Secretary.   
The public notification and the alternatives analysis must provide sufficient information on the 
current Art. 97 values and uses of the land, the public purpose of the disposition or change in 
use, and the replacement land for the public to clearly understand the proposed Art. 97 Action. 

EEA will post the alternatives analysis and other material submitted via the PLPA Portal to the 
PLPA website in order to facilitate compliance with public notice provisions of the PLPA and 
provide a centralized location for Art. 97 information. Project proponents are encouraged, and 
may be legally required under other statutes and regulations, to notify the public of proposed Art. 
97 Actions via means other than posting materials on the EEA website. Solicitation and 
collection of and response to public comment are encouraged of all PLPA proponents and 
required for those seeking a finding allowing funding in lieu. Public comment is the sole 
responsibility of proponents and not the responsibility of EEA. 

 

Alternatives Analysis: 

The Act requires all proponents of an Art. 97 Action to submit to EEA and make public “an 
alternatives analysis demonstrating that all other options to avoid or minimize [the Art. 97 
Action] have been explored and no feasible or substantially equivalent alternative exists”. The 
purpose of evaluating alternatives is to avoid using or impacting Art. 97 land or interests in land 
to the extent feasible, to minimize the use of such land or interests in land to the extent impacts 
are unavoidable, and to protect the public rights afforded by Art. 97.   

Alternatives analyses may be brief, but they must be in writing and must make the required 
demonstrations. A compliant alternatives analysis should: (i) explain the proposed Art. 97 Action 
and identify the public purpose that it will serve; (ii) identify the alternatives considered; and (iii) 
describe why each alternative not selected is not feasible or substantially equivalent to the 
proposed Art. 97 Action.  If applicable, the alternatives analysis should also summarize the 
proponent’s discussions with the public entity with care and control of the Art. 97 land and the 
public entity’s stated position and/or comments, if any, on the proposed Art. 97 Action.  

Proponents must consider alternatives that are commensurate with the type and size of the 
proposed Art. 97 Action. Alternative sites for consideration are those that were available at the 
time the proponent first notified the public entity that holds the land subject to Art. 97 and can be 
reasonably obtained: (a) within the appropriate market area for private proponents, state and/or 
regional entities; or (b) within the appropriate city or town for municipal proponents. Proponents 



4 
 

should describe clearly why each alternative that would avoid or reduce Art. 97 impacts is 
infeasible or not substantially equivalent to the proposed Art. 97 Action. In addition, the analysis 
should describe the steps that have been or will be taken to minimize the amount of impact (land 
area or type/degree of alteration) when changing the use or disposing of a parcel of Art. 97 land 
cannot be avoided.  

Alternatives should include privately held parcels available for the intended use at a price 
consistent with the current market value.  

If a submitted analysis is found to be inadequate, EEA will request additional information, which 
may include a request that the proponent identify and evaluate additional alternatives.   

 

Replacement Land: 

In order for an Art. 97 Action to occur the public entity with care and control of the land subject 
to the Art. 97 Action must take, acquire or dedicate in perpetuity replacement land or an interest 
in land that meets the requirements set forth in the Act, absent a waiver or modification from the 
Secretary or approval by the Legislature of in lieu funding (which must be used to purchase 
replacement land within three years). Where the proponent of an Art. 97 Action is not the public 
entity with care and control of the Art. 97 land, the proponent must work with the public entity to 
identify replacement land and must compensate the public entity for its acquisition costs.  

Replacement land must meet requirements set out in the PLPA, as follows. 

1. Replacement land cannot already be subject to Art. 97 or otherwise protected in 
perpetuity.  

2. Replacement land must be located in a comparable location to the impacted area. This 
does not require that the parcels be in the same municipality or census block, but locating 
replacement land in the same municipality is generally preferable and (for projects by 
municipal entities) easier than conserving land in a different municipality.  However, 
providing replacement land in a nearby community can be appropriate and in keeping 
with the intent of the PLPA. For example, if an impacted parcel protects a reservoir, the 
acquisition of replacement land located in a different town but closer to the reservoir 
might be prudent and result in a net benefit to the public.  

3. Replacement land must be equal or greater than the impacted area with respect to: (i) 
acreage; (ii) monetary value as determined by an appraisal of the fair market value or 
value in use, whichever is greater; and (iii) natural resource value, as determined by the 
Secretary of EEA. Additional detail on each of these requirements is provided below. 

Identification of land that meets these criteria shall not be construed to mean that EEA approves 
a proposal or that the replacement land is acceptable to the public entity with care and control of 
the involved Art. 97 land. The proponent of the Action should be mindful that additional legal 
requirements, apart from the PLPA, may apply to a public entity for the acquisition or 
disposition of interests in land. 



5 
 

In order to monitor public entity compliance with the conditions of legislation authorizing  an 
Art. 97 Action and to report to the Legislature on implementation of the Act, EEA expects to 
receive documentation that the replacement land or interest in land was taken, acquired or 
dedicated in perpetuity by an instrument properly recorded or registered at the Registry of Deeds 
or Land Court, as applicable, solely for the same Art. 97 purpose, and improved as needed to 
provide for comparable use, so that the requirements of the PLPA are met and the constitutional 
rights of Massachusetts residents are protected and enhanced. 

 

Land Descriptions and Acreage: 

Proponents must describe the land subject to the Art. 97 Action and the replacement land. The 
description of each must be specific enough to be included in legislation. In particular, the 
acreage, location, and boundaries of the Art. 97 land and the replacement land must be provided.  
Options for the legal description of land include a deed reference, metes and bounds, or reference 
to areas clearly delineated on a provided site plan. An assessors’ map and parcel reference may 
also be provided for clarity. However, in most cases these and conceptual plans do not 
sufficiently delineate property boundaries and they therefore should be viewed as supplemental 
materials. 

 

Appraisals: 

The Act requires all appraisals to include a determination of both fair market value and value in 
use. Value in use addresses the circumstance where the value is increased by the context and 
intended use in relation to its surroundings.  The appraisals must show that the fair market value 
or value in use of the replacement land, whichever is greater, exceeds that of the area impacted 
by the Art. 97 Action. Unless waived, appraisals of the monetary value of both the impacted and 
the replacement land must be submitted to EEA via the PLPA Portal and to the Legislature with 
a proposed Art. 97 bill.  

Proponents should contact the public entity with care and control of the land or interest in land 
subject to Art. 97 to determine what type of appraisal is required. Where the public entity 
determines that an independent appraisal is sufficient, the appraisal should meet EEA’s appraisal 
standards.  In other cases, the public entity holding the land subject to the proposed Art. 97 
Action may have its own appraisal requirements.  For example, an Art. 97 Action affecting land 
owned by the Commonwealth will generally require the appraisals to be commissioned by the 
state Division of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance and paid for by the proponent.  
Disposition or change in the use of land subject to federal restrictions may require the appraisal 
to be conducted in accordance with the Uniform Appraisal Standards for Federal Land 
Acquisitions (Yellow Book).  

 

  

https://www.mass.gov/doc/eea-grant-programs-appraisal-report-requirements/download?_ga=2.268328140.317085479.1673439620-245236997.1641839768
https://www.mass.gov/doc/eea-grant-programs-appraisal-report-requirements/download?_ga=2.268328140.317085479.1673439620-245236997.1641839768


6 
 

Natural Resource Value: 

Natural resource value is the benefit that land provides to the public, such as clean air and water, 
healthy food, climate change mitigation, wildlife habitat, or recreation.  EEA will exercise its 
best judgement, utilizing available natural resource information, to determine whether 
comparably located land provides equal or greater resource value. 

Replacement land should advance the same Art. 97 purpose(s) as the land to be lost. There are 
many Art. 97 purposes covering a wide range of natural resource and recreational values. 
Proponents should obtain, and where necessary improve, replacement land that has the same 
natural resource value and uses as the land that will be impacted. To do so, proponents should 
clearly identify the Art. 97 purposes for which the parcel is being used and replicate those 
purposes and uses on the replacement land. For instance, if the land to be disposed is a softball 
field (active recreation) then the replacement land should be of a sufficient size and configuration 
to support a similar active recreational use and include the construction of a field and other 
improvements equivalent to those to be lost. Similarly, should the land to be disposed be 
important habitat and used for hiking and other passive recreation then the proponent of the Art. 
97 Action should provide replacement land of the same habitat type and passive recreation value.   

 

Waivers & Modifications: 

The PLPA provides that in two circumstances the Secretary may consider requests to waive or 
modify the replacement land requirement of the Act. Accordingly, EEA will accept waiver or 
modification requests via the PLPA Portal for the following two scenarios. 

1) Transfer of legal control between public entities without a change in use: Entities seeking 
this type of waiver or modification should explain in their alternatives analysis the reason 
for the transfer. 

2) Transfer of a parcel less than 2,500 square feet in area and with insignificant natural 
resource and recreation value that serves a significant public interest: Entities seeking this 
type of waiver or modification must explain in their alternatives analysis the significant 
public interest being advanced and why the land in question has insignificant recreation or 
natural resource value. EEA cannot waive or modify the replacement land requirement if it 
determines that the land has any significant recreational or natural resource value.  

The Secretary has discretion to determine whether to approve a request for a waiver or 
modification. Once the Secretary has made a decision, the proponent will be notified and the 
waiver or modification determination posted on the PLPA website. 

  



7 
 

Funding in Lieu: 

The PLPA allows proponents to provide funding in lieu of replacement land, or a combination of 
land and funding, only if specific conditions are met. One condition is that the Secretary must 
report to the Legislature explicit findings that: 

1. the Art. 97 Action serves a significant public interest; 

2. the Art. 97 Action will have no adverse impact on an environmental justice population2; 

3. the alternatives analysis has been subjected to public notice and comment and 
demonstrates that, for specifically stated reasons, no feasible or substantially equivalent 
alternative exists to avoid or minimize Art. 97 impacts; and  

4. it is not feasible to contemporaneously designate replacement land.  

In addition, any legislation with a funding in lieu provision must require the proponent to provide 
to the public entity with care and control of the Art. 97 land not less than 110% of the higher of 
the appraised fair market value or value in use of the Art. 97 land; and the public entity shall hold 
the funds in a fund for acquiring Art. 97 land, and use the funds within three years to acquire 
land that qualifies as replacement land under the Act.  The PLPA stipulates that funds shall be 
deposited by a municipality in the Community Preservation Fund and dedicated solely for the 
acquisition of land for Art. 97 purposes or another already established municipal account for land 
preservation purposes or, if the municipality lacks such a fund, in a segregated account and 
dedicated solely for the acquisition of land for Art. 97 purposes. 

In their submission via the PLPA portal, proponents seeking findings allowing them to provide 
funding in lieu must: 

1. Demonstrate that, having considered EEA’s Environmental Justice Policy and analyzed 
the proposed Art. 97 Action using the environmental justice map viewer, the Art. 97 
Action will not have an adverse impact on an environmental justice population3;   

2. Provide a sufficient alternatives analysis that i) shows that the proposed Art. 97 Action 
serves a significant public interest, ii) describes efforts made to identify replacement land, 
including geographic area and means considered, and why they were not feasible or 
substantially equivalent, and iii) explains how public comment on the alternatives 
analysis was solicited and collected and provides comments and responses, if any;  

3. Specify the account in which funds will be deposited if the request to provide funding in 
lieu is approved; and  

4. Indicate how funds will be used to obtain replacement land within 3 years of the Art. 97 
Action. 

 
2 “Environmental justice population” is defined in M.G.L. c. 30, § 62. 
3 Proponents are encouraged to consult EEA’s Environmental Justice Director. 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/environmental-justice-policy6242021-update/download
https://mass-eoeea.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=1d6f63e7762a48e5930de84ed4849212
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30/Section62


8 
 

The Secretary has discretion as to the content and timing of findings issued in response to a 
request.  

If the Legislature enacts legislation approving in lieu funding, the public entity holding the in 
lieu funds will be required to submit an annual update to EEA on the status of acquiring 
replacement land until it confirms in writing to EEA that replacement land has been conserved. 

 

Submission of Legislation: 

Pursuant to the PLPA, a petition to file Art. 97 legislation must be accompanied by: 

• Documentation of public notification; 
• The alternatives analysis; 
• A description of the replacement land (if not waived); 
• A copy of the required appraisals (if not waived); 
• If applicable, a copy of any waiver or modification by the Secretary; and  
• If applicable, a copy of the report of findings of the Secretary regarding funding in lieu. 

Proponents should work with their legislative delegation to submit a bill to obtain the required 
two-thirds roll call vote of each branch of the Legislature.  As the timely filing deadline for the 
2023/2024 session (January 20, 2023) fell before the effective date of the PLPA, EEA recognizes 
that bills may have been filed that do not conform to PLPA requirements. For these bills, EEA 
staff stand ready to work with proponents and legislators to address missing documents while 
bills are being considered. Bills filed after the effective date of the PLPA (February 17, 2023) in 
the 2023/24 legislative session and those filed in future legislative sessions must be accompanied 
by the required documents.   

 

Approval by Public Entities: 

Proponents of an Art. 97 Action should refer to EEA’s Art. 97 Policy regarding approval of 
proposed projects. In all cases, proponents are encouraged to consult with the public entity with 
care and control of the land or interest in land subject to Art. 97 well in advance of submitting 
materials to EEA or filing a bill. In some cases, notably those authorizing an Art. 97 Action by a 
municipality, one or more formal votes is required by law and/or EEA’s Article 97 Policy. 

If applicable, drafters should be aware that language approving these votes must be consistent 
with the language of the subsequent legislation advancing the Art. 97 Action. Because legislative 
language frequently changes between the time a bill is filed and when it is enacted a new vote 
may be required where vote language does not authorize necessary changes.  For this reason, it is 
strategic to be clear on what is authorized without being overly limiting. Drafters may benefit by 
reviewing examples of prior Art. 97 legislation and the Legislative Research and Drafting 
Manual, consulting counsel, and seeking review by EEA in advance of finalizing vote language. 

 



9 
 

Funding Program Requirements:  

Proponents of an Art. 97 Action should research past federal or state investment in the Art. 97 
land in question.  If an Art. 97 Action is proposed for land that was acquired or improved with 
funding from either EEA and its agencies and offices (such as a Self-Help grant) or the federal 
government (such as the Land and Water Conservation Fund), then approval of the Art. 97 
Action and the replacement land by the funding entity is likely required under the terms of a 
project agreement. In most instances, arrangements that comply with the Act will also meet 
funding program requirements. However, new project agreements are typically needed, which 
must be separately negotiated and executed. When federal funding was accepted, and National 
Park Service (NPS) approval is required, the timeline for obtaining their approval is uncertain 
but usually lengthy. Proponents should contact the Division of Conservation Services at EEA as 
soon as possible after discovering that federal or state funding was provided for the land. DCS 
staff will assist in determining what actions are required.  

 

Compliance:  

EEA will address noncompliance with Art. 97 and the Act following the terms outlined in the 
Compliance section of the EEA Article 97 Policy. 

Information on PLPA Implementation: 

Consistent with the intent of the PLPA to make information on Art. 97 Actions available to the 
public and to assist with implementation of the Act, EEA has created a Public Lands 
Preservation Act website.  Content includes:  

• PLPA Portal (Submission of PLPA Documents & Data)  

o Submission of Alternatives Analyses and Waiver, Modification, & Funding in Lieu 
Requests 

• PLPA Tracker (Access to PLPA Submissions & Decisions)  

o Information on Submissions Received (Proposed Art. 97 Actions)  

o Waiver/Modification Determinations & Funding in Lieu Findings  

• Guidance Document (Assistance in Understanding & Complying with the PLPA)  

• Frequently Asked Questions  

• EEA Appraisal Standards 

• Article 97 Policy  

https://www.mass.gov/orgs/division-of-conservation-services#:%7E:text=DCS%20is%20a%20division%20of%20EEA%20that%20offers,Conservation%20Districts.%20What%20would%20you%20like%20to%20do%3F
https://www.mass.gov/doc/guidance-on-public-lands-preservation-act-implementation-january-2023/download
https://www.mass.gov/doc/public-lands-preservation-act-frequently-asked-questions-january-2023/download
https://www.mass.gov/doc/eea-grant-programs-appraisal-report-requirements/download?_ga=2.268328140.317085479.1673439620-245236997.1641839768
https://www.mass.gov/files/dcsarticle97.pdf#:%7E:text=It%20is%20the%20policy%20of%20EOEA%20and%20its,all%20previous%20EOEA%20Article%2097%20land%20disposition%20policies.


10 
 

• An Act Preserving Open Space in the Commonwealth (Chap. 274 of the Acts of 2022, 
otherwise known as the Public Lands Preservation Act) 

 

Consultation: 

EEA policy, legal, and legislative staff will collaboratively answer questions regarding Art. 97 
Actions.  A dedicated email address, plpa@mass.gov, has been established to accept requests for 
assistance.   All PLPA related inquiries are properly directed to this address including: 

• Questions on the use of the PLPA Portal, the application itself, the status of a submission, 
or the availability of information on PLPA submissions; 

• Policy oriented or substantive questions about Art. 97; and 

• Technical questions around the proper drafting of PLPA legislation  

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/SessionLaws/Acts/2022/Chapter274#:%7E:text=Acts%20%282022%29%20Chapter%20274%20AN%20ACT,PRESERVING%20OPEN%20SPACE%20IN%20THE%20COMMONWEALTH
mailto:plpa@mass.gov


1 
 

Public Lands Preservation Act: Frequently Asked Questions 

February 2023 

 

1. Where can I find the Act to Preserve Open Space in the Commonwealth, otherwise 
known as the Public Lands Protection Act? 

The Act can be viewed here, and will be codified at M.G.L. c. 3, § 5A. 

 

2. What types of activities are subject to the Act? 

The Act applies to changes in use or dispositions of land or interests in land subject to Article 97 
(otherwise referred to as an “Art. 97 Action”) owned by a public entity.  More detail can be 
found in the Applicability section of the PLPA Guidance. 

 

3. What is a public entity under the Act? 

The Act defines public entities to include a wide range of state, municipal, quasi-governmental, 
and other entities. These include but are not limited to EEA agencies, other agencies of the 
commonwealth, cities and towns, conservation commissions, water and fire districts, quasi-
public agencies, and conservation districts. If in doubt about whether an entity is a “public 
entity”, refer to the statute or contact EEA.  

 

4. What is Article 97? How does it relate to the PLPA? 

Article 97 is an amendment to the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. It 
provides, in part, that “Lands and easements taken or acquired for [Article 97] purposes shall not 
be used for other purposes or otherwise disposed of except by laws enacted by a two thirds vote, 
taken by yeas and nays, of each branch of the general court.” Article 97 purposes include 
dedication of public land to open space, conservation, natural resources, or other related 
purposes. 

The Act provides that in order to use for another purpose or dispose of Article 97 land 
proponents must notify the public and the Secretary of Energy and Environmental Affairs, 
conduct an alternatives analysis and submit it to the Secretary and make it public, and provide 
replacement land of equal or greater natural resource value, acreage, and monetary value. In 
specific limited circumstances, these requirements may be waived or modified or funding may be 
provided in lieu of replacement land.  The Act also states that the legislation required by Art. 97 
must be accompanied by the alternatives analysis, a description of the replacement land, an 
appraisal, and a copy of any applicable waiver decision of finding regarding a request to use 
funding in lieu.  

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/SessionLaws/Acts/2022/Chapter274
https://www.mass.gov/doc/guidance-on-public-lands-preservation-act-implementation-january-2023/download


2 
 

5. What steps do I need to take before filing a bill?  

The Act requires 4 basic steps before a bill can be filed: 

1. Notify the public and EEA of the proposed action. 
2. Draft an alternatives analysis and submit it to EEA. EEA has provided guidance to assist 

with drafting. The alternatives analysis must be submitted, and EEA will post it on its 
website. 

3. Describe the land to be affected and identify replacement land with an equivalent or 
greater acreage, monetary value, and natural resource value. EEA will determine whether 
the natural resource value of the replacement land is sufficient, as described in the 
guidance. In some cases, the Act allows the Secretary to determine that the replacement 
land requirement may be waived or modified. Contact EEA if you believe your project 
may be eligible for a waiver or modification or if you intend to seek approval to mitigate 
for the loss of Article 97 land via funding in lieu of land. 

4. Draft legislation and obtain authorization for the filing of a bill. For municipalities this 
requires approval at Town Meeting or City Council. EEA can assist by reviewing draft 
legislation and local vote language, which can make the bill approval process smoother. 

 

6. The Act requires appraisal of the Article 97 land and the replacement land. Regarding 
the required appraisals, what is “value in use” or “value in proposed use”? 

“Value in use” is a method of valuation that requires an appraiser to consider a property’s value 
not standing alone, but in the context of the land in question.  For example, disposition of a small 
area of Article 97 land could enable access to a much larger, landlocked parcel, allowing 
development of the landlocked parcel. In this case, the Article 97 land would have a much higher 
"value in use" than would be the case if it was appraised in isolation. Similarly, a small parcel of 
land can often be combined with adjacent land holdings to enable development that might not 
otherwise have been possible.  In these instances, the Act requires proponents to compensate the 
people of the Commonwealth for the full appraised amount of the value in use.  

 

7. When is a waiver or modification allowed, and what is needed? 

The requirements of the Act can be waived or modified only under specific circumstances 
provided in the Act and when approved by the Secretary in writing. Waivers or modifications of 
the replacement land requirement can be granted for: 

• the exchange of land between eligible public entities without a change in use or other 
change, and  

• projects that serve a significant public interest and impact less than 2,500 square feet in 
area of land of insignificant natural resource or recreational value.   

Those seeking a waiver or modification should submit a request to the Secretary via the relevant 
section of the PLPA Portal. 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/guidance-on-public-lands-preservation-act-implementation-january-2023/download
https://www.mass.gov/doc/guidance-on-public-lands-preservation-act-implementation-january-2023/download


3 
 

8. When is funding in lieu of replacement land allowed, and what is needed? 

In the rare case that it is not possible to provide replacement land to fully mitigate for the loss of 
Article 97 land, the Act allows mitigation in the form of funding. The Secretary must make 
specific findings, after a public process, for funding to be used to mitigate impacts to Article 97 
land.  Proponents seeking to use in lieu funding should contact EEA early in the project 
development process to better understand whether a project may be appropriate for consideration 
of in lieu funding and to understand the process. 

 

9. What materials need to be submitted to the legislature with an Article 97 bill? 
 
1. An alternatives analysis  
2. A description of the replacement land or interest in land to be dedicated  
3. A copy of the appraisal of the land to be disposed and of the replacement land 
4. If applicable, a copy of any waiver or modification granted by the Secretary 
5. If applicable, a copy of the report of the findings of the Secretary for in lieu funding 

 
 

10. How can the public notification requirement of the PLPA be met? 

The Act requires that a project proponent notify the public about the project and make the 
alternatives analysis public.  

The public will be notified about a potential project when the responsible public entity considers 
it for approval. The Commonwealth’s Open Meeting Law requires public bodies to notify the 
public about all meetings, including those at which a body will consider an Art. 97 Action. EEA 
also suggests additional notification of a project and provision of access to associated materials 
(like the alternatives analysis and a description of the replacement land) by posting on a website 
or other means. EEA will post alternatives analyses and other information it receives on its 
PLPA webpage, helping to notify the public and provide a central place to go for information. 

 

11. EEA previously reviewed proposed Art. 97 Actions under its (now superseded) Art. 97 
Policy.  What is different about review under the PLPA as compared to the Policy? 

The main difference between the prior process and the process under the Act is that the process 
now is more formal and public.  In addition, the Legislature has provided certain specific 
substantive requirements that every bill seeking a waiver or modification, or the use of in lieu 
funding, must meet. Key differences are: 

• Notice: In the past, proponents did not always publicize a project before submitting a bill 
to the Legislature. Public notice and notice to EEA are now required. 

• Alternatives analysis: In the past EEA staff would discuss alternatives examined with 
proponents and work with them to ensure that any impact was properly mitigated.  Now 



4 
 

all proponents must also provide a written analysis of the alternatives to the Article 97 
Action and make it available to the public.   

• Waiver or modification: In the past, an Art. 97 bill might be enacted without providing 
an equal amount of replacement land, if the proponent demonstrated, in consultation with 
EEA and legislative staff, that waiver or modification was appropriate. Now a waiver or 
modification makes explicit the specific, limited situations when a waiver or modification 
may be considered and requires a request for approval by the Secretary and the 
Secretary’s approval before it can occur. The Secretary’s waiver or modification must be 
submitted with a proposed bill. 

• In lieu funding: In the past, an Art. 97 bill might be enacted allowing partial or full 
funding in lieu of replacement land if the proponent demonstrated, after consultation with 
EEA and legislative staff, that the project complied with EEA’s Art. 97 Policy. Now, 
proponents seeking to use in lieu funding must submit a formal request to EEA, the 
alternatives analysis must be subjected to public notice and comment, the project must 
meet substantive criteria (such as no adverse impact on an environmental justice 
population), and the Secretary must report specific written findings to the Legislature. If 
approved, proponents are also subject to specific requirements governing the handling of 
funds and when replacement land must be acquired. 

 

12. When providing replacement land can we change one type of active recreation to 
another if that other type is more needed? 

In general, EEA’s Article 97 policy requires that the replacement land be dedicated to the same 
Article 97 purpose as the land being lost. For example, land used for active recreation should be 
replaced with land dedicated to active recreation. Occasionally, legislation may be more specific 
as to the type of active recreation occurring. In such cases, EEA has supported legislation 
providing a slightly different but comparable Art. 97 use within the same category of Art. 97 
purpose.  For example, data from a community’s Open Space and Recreation Plan or records of 
field use could show that an underutilized softball field should be replaced by a soccer field. 
Contact EEA to discuss questions about specific parcels of land under consideration. 

 

13. There is a waiver provision that allows transfers of protected land between 
conservation entities so long as the use does not change.  Why would that happen?  

This provision describes a “land swap” and is generally done to facilitate more effective 
management of the property in question.  For example, a state agency may transfer a playground 
to a municipal parks department, or a municipal conservation commission may transfer a parcel 
of land that protects a public water supply to the water department. In such cases, the land does 
not leave Article 97 protection, and its use does not change. 



5 
 

14. There is a provision allowing waivers or modification for impacts under 2,500 square 
feet. Can you provide some examples illustrating how EEA will consider if a project 
qualifies for this waiver? 

The replacement land requirement can be waived or modified for small projects that serve a 
significant public interest and impact land with insignificant natural resource and recreation 
value. Public infrastructure projects are expected to be the primary projects that qualify for this 
provision. Roads and bridges, gas and electric lines, water and sewer pipes, and other public 
infrastructure frequently traverse Art. 97 land.  Projects to repair and replace this infrastructure 
often have limited ability to avoid and minimize impacts to Article 97 land.  Thus, for example, a 
proposal to repair a bridge abutment or to replace a utility pole next to a roadway could 
reasonably argue that the project serves the significant public purpose of public safety and 
welfare, and EEA may determine that the land affected has insignificant environmental or 
recreational value. Land that might qualify as of insignificant value could include parking lots or 
roadways that are protected by Art. 97 because of their presence on or association with public 
park land. Conversely, a public interest project under 2,500 square feet but in an area of Priority 
Habitat, of very high recreational value, or in an environmental justice population may not 
qualify. The Secretary will determine whether to grant a waiver or modification request based on 
the facts of each case. 

 
15. Can land already owned by a community, but not dedicated for an Art. 97 purpose, be 

used as replacement land? 

Yes.  While already protected land cannot be used to meet the replacement land requirement, this 
does not mean that other held land by a public entity for other purposes cannot be conserved and 
provided as mitigation.  For instance, many communities hold land in general municipal 
ownership or have tax title parcels that may be used for replacement. 

 
16. Can you provide some examples of protected land that would not qualify for use as 

replacement? 

Replacement land must protect a parcel that is not already protected in perpetuity. Land already 
held for conservation and recreation purposes by a parks department or conservation commission 
is already subject to Article 97 and does not qualify as replacement land.  Other lands that EEA 
will not view as acceptable replacement land include privately owned land subject to a 
conservation restriction precluding development in perpetuity, land held by a land trust or other 
non-profit for conservation purposes, or land required to be protected as a condition of any 
permit or other approval (e.g., open space required as a condition of a cluster subdivision 
permit). 

 

  



6 
 

17. Must replacement land be in the same community as the land subject to the Art. 97 
Action? 

Replacement land must be in a “comparable location” to the land subject to the Article 97 
Action. This does not require that the parcels be in the same municipality or census block, but 
proponents should seek replacement land that is as nearby as feasible. Locating replacement land 
in the same municipality is generally preferable and (for municipal entities) easier than 
conserving land in a different municipality.  However, providing replacement land in a nearby 
community can be appropriate and in keeping with the intent of the PLPA. For example, if an 
impacted parcel protects a reservoir, the acquisition of replacement land located in a different 
town but closer to the reservoir might be prudent and result in a net benefit to the public.     

 

18. Is there any consequence for lack of compliance with the PLPA? 

The Act requires the Secretary to report on instances where funding in lieu of replacement land 
is authorized by legislation. In this report, EEA will identify any municipality or other public 
entity that fails to comply with the requirements for handling the in lieu funds or acquiring 
replacement land. 

Consistent with EEA’s Article 97 Policy, the Secretary may determine that a municipality or 
other public entity will be ineligible for grants from EEA and its agencies and offices if that 
municipality or entity changes the use or disposes of land in violation of Article 97 or the 
PLPA, or if it fails to perform any of the conditions required by legislation enacted pursuant to 
Article 97. 

 

19. What is expected regarding solicitation, collection, and response to public comments? 

Solicitation, collection, written response to, and submission of public comment is encouraged of 
all PLPA proponents and required of those seeking a finding allowing funding in lieu of 
replacement land.  The project proponent is responsible for soliciting, accepting, and responding 
to public comment.  Comments should be submitted to the proponent.  EEA will not directly 
accept or post public comments on projects. However, EEA will receive and post alternatives 
analyses, which may include public comment.  

 

20. What are the standards for the required “description of the replacement land” that 
must accompany legislation? 

The legislation must include a sufficient legal description of the replacement land to identify the 
area to be dedicated. Acreage must be indicated, and the location and boundaries of the land 
described precisely.  This description may be done via reference to a deed or areas clearly 
delineated on a provided or recorded site plan, or via metes and bounds.  Additional description 



7 
 

may be beneficial, such as a reference to the assessor’s parcel. Plans used for reference do not 
need to be recorded prior to filing legislation but must be available for review. 

Information on the replacement land accompanying the bill must include appraised value, an 
explanation of how the natural and recreational value of the impacted parcel is being replicated, 
and information on the location of the replacement land to support assessment of whether the 
land is comparably located.    

 

21. What is the range of alternatives to a proposed Art. 97 Action that must be considered? 

The scope of alternatives considered must be commensurate with the type and size of the 
proposed disposition or change in use of Article 97 land or interest in land. The expected scope 
of alternatives extends to any sites that were available at the time the proponent first notified the 
controlling public entity, and which can be reasonably obtained: (a) within the appropriate 
market area for private proponents, state and/or regional entities; or (b) within the appropriate 
city or town for municipal proponents.  Additional information on the alternatives analysis is 
available in EEA’s guidance. 

 

22. How will EEA determine that replacement land is of equal or greater natural resource 
value? 

EEA will utilize available information on natural resources, such as BioMap, to determine 
whether comparably located replacement land provides equal or greater natural resource value. 
In the past comparably located land of the same land cover type as that subject to the Art. 97 
Action has generally been acceptable.  For example, replacing 2 acres of forested land with 3 
acres of forested land a ¼ mile away often provides equal or greater resource value. 

 

23. EEA posted an alternatives analysis on its PLPA website. Does this mean that EEA 
supports the project? 

No.  EEA posts all materials submitted via the PLPA Portal to make them available to the public, 
and their posting does not mean that EEA supports or does not support a project. EEA works 
with all proponents to ensure that legislation authorizing an Art. 97 Action complies with the 
PLPA and EEA’s Art. 97 Policy. 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/guidance-on-public-lands-preservation-act-implementation-january-2023/download


From: Esip, Brandon M.
To: Marlene McCollem
Subject: Request for Disposal/Trade and Transfer
Date: Friday, March 15, 2024 4:49:36 PM

Marlene,
 
Can you add the following to the Selectboards Agenda?  These are the vehicles that we will
be trading in to McGovern Automotive Group (the vendor we have purchased our vehicle
upfits from).  One vehicle will also be transferred to ISWM.  The vehicles traded to
McGovern will be credited towards our upfit costs of the four vehicles they are currently
working on so we are able to complete the vehicle purchases and upfits from the approved
capital request.
 
The vehicle transfer to ISWM seems to be a welcome acquisition by Dan and does not
impact our budget for the capital expenditure.
 
THE BOURNE POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUESTS PERMISSION TO DISPOSE OF THE
FOLLOWING FOUR VEHICLES VIA TRADE-IN CREDIT AS THEY ARE NO LONGER OF
OPERATIONAL USE TO THE POLICE DEPARTMENT:
 
Vehicle Reason for Trade Value Equipment with

Trade
2013 Ford Explorer 4x4
Y(38)
1FM5K8B84DGB21009

100,000 + miles,
age/maintenance
issues.
Not useable by other
departments.

$2,000 Obsolete strobe
lights/siren/controller
Obsolete console

2016 Ford Interceptor
(Y37)
1FM5K8AR7GGA72404

Former K9 vehicle,
many electrical
issues, frequent check
engine issues.  HVAC
not reliable.
Not useable by other
departments.

$2,800 Obsolete strobe
lights/siren/controller
Obsolete computer
mounts
Obsolete console

2011 Ford Taurus Sedan
(Y31)
1FAHP2HW2BG179774

Permanently Out of
Service Due to Safety
Issues.  Rus/rot on
frame that would be
too costly to repair.
Not useable by other
departments.

$1.500 Obsolete strobe
lights/siren/controller

2020 Ford Interceptor
SUV (Y23)
1FM5K8AB9LGA72028

Upon Arrival of
Replacement

$4,500 Obsolete strobe
lights/siren/controller
Obsolete computer
mounts
Obsolete console

 
THE POLICE DEPARTMENT, IN CONSULT WITH ISWM, REQUESTS TO TRANSFER
THE FOLLOWING VEHICLE TO ISWM AS THE POLICE DEPARTMENT DOES NOT

mailto:BEsip@townofbourne.com
mailto:mmccollem@townofbourne.com


HAVE AN OPERATIONAL USE FOR THE VEHICLE; HOWEVER ISWM DOES HAVE AN
OPERATIONAL USE FOR THE VEHICLE:
 
Vehicle Reason for Trade
2020 Ford Intercepter SUV (Y5)
1FM5K8ABXLGD00828

100,000 + miles, no viable for public
safety use, ISWM requested it for their
needs.

 
I am also working on a transfer of a Bourne Police Department trailer to the DPW with them
transferring one of their trailers to us.  Both Matt and I agree that this would be for the
benefit of both departments. The larger Emergency operations trailer used by the PD is too
large for our needs, and the newer, but smaller trailer the DPW has is too small for their
specific needs.  We will both be able to make better use of this equipment by transferring. 
Matt and I will get you the details on the VINS for those trailers next week.  I’ve included
Matt on this email so is aware of the vehicle disposals.
 
Thank-you,
 
Chief Brandon Esip
PoliceChief@townofbourne.com
Bourne Police Department | 35 Armory Rd | Buzzards Bay, MA 02532

OFFICE DIRECT: (774) 247-5525
OFFICE EXTENSIONS: (508) 759-4420 EXT 8003
 
Homepage:  http://www.bournepolice.com Facebook:  http://www.facebook.com/BournePolice  Twitter:  @Bourn
ePD

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity
to whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the system manager. This
message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named
addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-
mail if you have received this e-mail by mistake and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are not the
intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the
contents of this information is strictly prohibited.
 

mailto:PoliceChief@townofbourne.com
http://www.bournepolice.com/
http://www.facebook.com/BournePolice
https://twitter.com/bournepd
https://twitter.com/bournepd


Consent Agenda – Special Events 
 

Event Organizer Type of Event Location Date Rain Date 
Kind Hearts for 
Kids 

Kindness 
Festival 

Buzzards Bay Park 9/7/24 9/8/24 

Habitat for 
Humanity 

Bike Ride Town Roads 9/15/24 n/a 

Habitat for 
Humanity 

One Day Liquor 
License 

Aptucxet Trading 
Post 

9/15/24 n/a 

Denise Wright Pickleball 
Fundraiser 

Clarke Field 6/29/24 6/30 

PanMass Challenge Bike Ride Town Roads 8/3-8/4 n/a 
PanMass Challenge One Day Liquor 

License 
Mass Maritime 
Academy (101 
Academy Dr) 

8/3/24 n/a 

BHS Girls Lacrosse Car Wash Pocasset Fire 
Station 

5/4/24 5/11 

Samantha Moran Wedding 
Ceremony 

Buzzards Bay Park 10/5/24 n/a 

Rachel Edwards 1st birthday 
party 

Buzzards Bay Park 4/20/24 n/a 

Amanda Bryant Family Reunion Buzzards Bay Park 7/27/24 n/a 

Best Buddies 
International 

Bike Ride Town Roads 6/1/24 n/a 

 





Bourne Board of Selectmen Policy Public Street Layout & Acceptance 

Adopted by the Board of Selectmen – April 2, 2024 

 

 

Select Board Policy 

Public Road Layout and Acceptance 

1.0 Authority 
In accordance with MGL Ch. 82, §§17-32 and Section 3.1.37 of the Town of Bourne 
General Bylaws: “Layout and Acceptance of Private Ways,” the Select Board 
adopts this Public Road Layout and Acceptance Policy. This policy supersedes 
all previous Town of Bourne Select Board policies related to “Laying Out of Town 
Ways”, and any previously policy is hereby repealed. . 

 
2.0 Purpose 

This policy has been prepared to ease and facilitate the process by which private 
roads are laid out and accepted as public ways within the Town of Bourne and 
further to ensure a thorough and complete review of all ways proposed to be 
accepted as public ways.  
 
This policy contains the procedures required by Massachusetts law, Town bylaw, 
and the Town of Bourne’s other requirements that must be followed by petitioners 
and others to lay out and accept an existing private roadway as a public way. 
Compliance with this policy is the financial and legal responsibility of petitioners 
and not the Town of Bourne. This policy is not intended and should not be 
construed as providing legal advice.  
 
Petitioners and all other interested parties should note that the layout and 
acceptance of a road as a public way involves three steps.  
 

First, the Select Board must “lay out” the public way by establishing the metes 
and bounds and physical location of the way, in accordance with MGL Ch. 82, 
§§21-24, which includes a referral of the proposed layout to the Planning Board.  
 
Second, Town Meeting must vote to accept the way, as laid out by the Select 
Board, as a public way and to authorize the Select Board to acquire the 
necessary ownership interests for the same.  
 
Third, the Select Board must then acquire the fee or an easement in the street 
and all necessary easements for appurtenances, including drainage, utility, 
access, slope, and other similar items.  

 
Each of these three steps must be completed (some under specified statutory 
timeframes) for a road to become a public way and there is no legal obligation that 
the Town approve any of the three steps, even if some have previously been 
completed.  
 
This policy is not intended to and shall not create any legal rights or entitlements 



Bourne Board of Selectmen Policy Public Street Layout & Acceptance 

Adopted by the Board of Selectmen – April 2, 2024 

 

 

of any kind for any person. This policy is solely and completely intended to serve 
as guidance to create an orderly procedure for the Select Board’s review of 
petitions for the layout and acceptance of private ways. The Select Board’s 
decision-making under this policy shall be solely at its discretion and the Select 
Board reserves the ability to amend this policy at any time for any reason. 
 

 
3.0 Preliminary Requirements 

As appropriate, the Planning Board process for subdivision road construction and 
oversight shall be completed prior to petitioning the Select Board for Road Layout 
and Acceptance of a subdivision road. 

 
4.0 Layout 

The “laying out” process establishes the metes and bounds and physical location 
of the way. It does not, by itself, constitute either the acquisition of an interest in 
the underlying land or acceptance of the way as a public way. The laying out 
process is, however, an essential prerequisite to the formal vote of acceptance by 
Town Meeting. 

 
4.1 Petition Process (Prior to July 1st) 
The laying out of a town way may be initiated by the Select Board /Road 
Commissioners or by one or more inhabitants of the Town of Bourne (MGL Ch.82, 
§§17 and 21). In conjunction with Section 3.1.37 of the Town of Bourne General 
Bylaws, the petition shall be submitted prior to July 1st in order to be considered 
for acceptance at the Annual Town Meeting in the following May.  
 
The Select Board shall only consider the first four fully completed petitions 
containing all the documents required to be submitted with the petition as set forth 
below, for consideration for the following fiscal year. This may be exceeded by the 
Select Board if the Town determines it is within their best interest to do so. The 
remaining petitions will be put on a list in the order in which they are fully completed 
for consideration for the following fiscal year. Inclusion on this list shall not create 
any right, entitlement, or property interest of any kind. This list shall be maintained 
solely as an aid for the Town’s and Select Board’s subsequent year review of 
petitions. The Town and Select Board reserve the right to modify or otherwise 
deviate from this list at any time for any reason. 
 
Petitions will only be considered for layout of roads that are determined by the 
Engineering Department to be in good condition, free of significant defects, and 
that meet the standards specified in the Planning Board's Subdivision Rules and 
Regulations. Petitions for roads not meeting these criteria may be considered by 
the Select Board provided that the abutters of the subject road(s) agree to 
betterments to be assessed by the Town for one hundred (100%) percent of the 
costs to improve the road( s) in accordance with the aforementioned criteria.  
 
Prospective petitioners are encouraged to meet with DPW and Engineering 



Bourne Board of Selectmen Policy Public Street Layout & Acceptance 

Adopted by the Board of Selectmen – April 2, 2024 

 

 

Department staff prior to submission to review the layout and acceptance process. 
 

4.2 Content of the Petition (Prior to July 1st) 
 
The layout petition shall include the following comprehensive documentation to be 
considered for layout and acceptance: 

 
a) Petition - copy of the petition for road layout and acceptance as a public 

way by 75% of the owners of the abutting property agreeing to accept 
and pay the cost estimated to be apportioned to each abutter or; 
 
If the petition for road layout and acceptance is less than 75% of the 
owners of the abutting property agreeing to accept and pay the cost 
estimated, proof of a prior 4/5ths certified vote from the Select Board 
shall be necessary; 

 
b) Signed and notarized originals of the approved legal documents (ie. 

deeds, easements, title search, etc.) ready to be executed by the Select 
Board. These documents will be held by the Select Board until Town 
Meeting approval, and then the acquisition process will commence; 

 
c) a certified list of abutters from the Town Assessor’s Office of all property 

owners having frontage along the way that is proposed to be accepted 
as well as any land owners of the way to be laid out and any other 
owners of property that contain easements associated with the way (ie. 
slope, drainage, utility, etc.); 

 
d) a metes and bounds legal description of the way including a metes and 

bounds legal description of all easements to be included as part of the 
way; 

 
e) two (2) paper plots of the layout plans (full-sized) and seven (7) paper 

plots (half-scale) showing all metes and bounds of the proposed public 
way as well as any associated easements. The layout plan and profile 
of the existing roadway shall meet the requirements of the Town of 
Bourne Planning Board Subdivision Rules and Regulations for an “as-
built” plan, prepared and certified by a Massachusetts Registered 
Professional Land Surveyor. These layout plans shall show information 
and notes as is required for recording at the Barnstable County Registry 
of Deeds. One mylar copy is to be provided at the time of the layout 
meeting for signature. 
 

f) Coring and/or test hole logs showing existing pavement structure 
performed and certified by a Massachusetts Registered Professional 
Engineer approved by the Town of Bourne Engineering Department. 
Said corings and/or test holes shall be taken at the limits of the petitioned 



Bourne Board of Selectmen Policy Public Street Layout & Acceptance 

Adopted by the Board of Selectmen – April 2, 2024 

 

 

road and at points every 300 feet in between, or at the midpoint if less 
than 300 feet. 

 
4.3 Engineering Review and Preliminary Select Board Vote (Prior to 

September 1st) 
The Engineering Department will conduct a preliminary review of all petitions, 
which may include an onsite inspection of the road proposed for layout and shall 
prepare a brief, written report of its findings and recommendations addressed to 
the Select Board.  
 
At the discretion of the Engineering Department and the Town Administrator’s 
Office, the Town may require a preliminary legal review, by Town Counsel’s office, 
of any petition and its supporting documents. The Town may require that 
petitioners agree to reimburse the Town for the reasonable costs incurred by the 
Town for such a review.  
 
Once the Engineering Department has completed its preliminary review of the 
petitioned road, the Select Board may hold a preliminary vote of intent to layout 
the road as a public way. Alternatively, if the Engineering Department concludes 
that one or more requirements for road acceptance are not met, the Engineering 
Department will review materials submitted with the petition and other such 
materials as may be appropriate and will develop a list of road conditions not 
meeting current Planning Board Rules & Regulation Standards and submit to the 
Planning Board.  

 
4.4 Recommendation (September) 
Following an affirmative preliminary vote to layout a road as a public way, pursuant 
to MGL c. 41, §81G, the Select Board will refer the matter to the Planning Board 
for a recommendation. Upon receipt of the Planning Board's report or 45 days 
having elapsed since the petition was referred to the Planning Board, whichever is 
the earlier, then the Select Board may hold a meeting to vote on the layout of the 
road as a public way.  
 
The Engineering Department will then develop preliminary estimates of betterment 
including legal and survey costs, in order for the road to be laid out as a public way 
and determines cost per abutter based on appropriate method (i.e. per lot, 
frontage, etc.). The Select Board then notifies each abutter by certified mail of the 
estimated betterment cost. The notice shall include the terms for the payment of 
the betterment. 
 
If at any point the petition doesn’t meet the signature requirement of 75% of 
abutters, the petition will be removed from consideration or the petitioners will 
require a 4/5ths vote from the Select Board.  

 
Upon approval from the Engineering Department, a letter from Town Counsel 



Bourne Board of Selectmen Policy Public Street Layout & Acceptance 

Adopted by the Board of Selectmen – April 2, 2024 

 

 

indicating that all necessary legal documents (ie. deeds, easements, title search, 
assents of mortgages, subordination agreements with the lender, etc.) are 
acceptable as to form and an original title certification for all roads, ways and 
easements being petitioned along with a letter from Town Counsel indicating the 
document is acceptable as to form will be provided to the Select Board. 
 

 
4.5 Notification of Layout Public Meeting (October) 
At least seven (7) days prior to laying out the way, notice of the meeting at which 
the layout will be considered must be given to owners of any land or easements to 
be taken for the roadway, including any slope, drainage, or other easements. 
Notification shall be by U.S. Mail and shall be posted in a public place in the Town. 
The notice shall contain a metes and bounds description of the proposed layout 
and a description, by reference to assessors map and parcel numbers, or all land 
or easements to be taken, as well as the time and place of the layout meeting and 
shall also advise of the time and place the layout plans may be viewed. The 
Select Board/Road Commissioners shall be responsible for providing notice of this 
public meeting. 
 

4.6 Action (October/November) 
Once the meeting has been held concerning the layout, the Select Board/Road 
Commissioners may vote to adopt the layout as shown on the metes and bounds 
plan.  
 
For any petition where 75% or more of the abutting property owners have agreed 
in writing to accept and pay the cost estimated to be apportioned to each abutter, 
said vote of the Select Board shall require a simple majority for approval. (General 
Bylaws Section 3.1.37(b)). For all other petitions, said vote of the Select Board 
shall require a 4/5 majority for approval with a finding by the Select Board that a 
compelling public necessity exists for layout and acceptance of the road in 
question. (General Bylaws Section 3.1.37(b)). 

4.7 Article for Annual Town Meeting Warrant (February/March) 
The Select Board shall place an article on the Town Meeting Warrant for acceptance 
of the road as a public way at the beginning of February. If land or easements need 
to be acquired by the Town, the Article should authorize the acquisition of the land 
or easements by purchase, gift or eminent domain and, if necessary, appropriate 
funds therefor. If an Article is placed on the warrant, the Petitioner shall submit 
Layout Plans, and Construction plans if necessary.  
 
Final estimated betterment costs are calculated using lowest acceptable 
construction bid at this time. 

4.8 Town Clerk Filing (April) 
The layout description, as voted, including any plan, must then be filed with the 



Bourne Board of Selectmen Policy Public Street Layout & Acceptance 

Adopted by the Board of Selectmen – April 2, 2024 

 

 

Town Clerk (c. 82 §§22 and 23), who must record such decision in a book kept for 
this purpose within 10 days (c. 82 §32) and no later than 7 days preceding the 
Town Meeting date on which a vote of acceptance is to be taken as to said road 
(c. 82, §23).  

 
5.0 Acceptance (Town Meeting - Typically First Monday in May) 

“Acceptance” is the procedure whereby Town Meeting votes to recognize and 
accept responsibility for the street layout adopted by the Select Board/Road 
Commissioners. In order for acceptance to occur, the Select Board shall have 
voted positively to layout the way as a public way and all of the backup 
documentation required under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 herein shall have been 
submitted and approved in final form prior to warrants closing for the Annual Town 
Meeting. 

 
6.0 Acquisition (Within 120 Days After ATM) 

If the Town will be acquiring the land or an easement in the way or any necessary 
easements associated with the way, such as slope or drainage easements, the 
Select Board/Road Commissioners must, within 120 days after the termination of 
the Town Meeting at which the public way was accepted, either: 

 
(1) acquire the land by gift or purchase, or 

 
(2) adopt an order of taking under MGL c. 79, or 

 
(3) institute proceedings for a taking under MGL c. 80A (c. 82, §24). 

 
If an order of taking is adopted under MGL c. 79, that order must be recorded in 
the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds within 30 days of such adoption 
(c. 79, §3). 
 
Town Counsel prepares the necessary documentation for the grant of easements 
to the Town or taking of easements by the Town and records all documents and 
plans at the Barnstable Registry of Deeds or the Barnstable Registry District of the 
Land Court once they have been executed by the Select Board or the property 
owners, depending upon the circumstances.  
 
If necessary, the Town will undertake the necessary improvements to the way in 
accordance with the bidding procedures under the Massachusetts Public 
Construction Laws. 
 
Upon completion of the betterments, each abutting owner shall be billed for their 
proportionate share of the actual total costs of laying out and accepting the road 
as a public way, and not the estimated costs. The assessment of betterments shall 
be governed by the applicable provisions of the General Laws. 

 
7.0 Waiver 



Bourne Board of Selectmen Policy Public Street Layout & Acceptance 

Adopted by the Board of Selectmen – April 2, 2024 

 

 

The Select Board/Road Commissioners may waive any part of this policy as 
regards to the timing and/or deadlines provided that all statutory requirements are 
complied with for the purpose of public street layout and acceptance. 



Board of Selectmen 
Minutes of Tuesday, October 18, 2022 

Bourne Veterans’ Community Center – Rm 2 
Buzzards Bay, MA 

 
TA Marlene McCollem 
 

Board of Selectmen 

Peter Meier, Chair 
Jared MacDonald, Vice Chair 
Melissa Ferretti, Clerk 
Judith Froman 
Mary Jane Mastrangelo 
 
Others:  Kate Lena, Elizabeth Griffin, Joe Carrara (virtual), Lori Cooney, Karen Wilson, and Bill Macuch.  
 
Note this Zoom videoconference meeting is being televised, streamed, or recorded by Bourne TV.  If anyone 
in the audience is recording or videotaping, they need to acknowledge such at this time.    
 
Zoom Meeting ID:  869 5775 5505      Password:  529740 
 
All items within the meeting agenda are subject to deliberation and vote(s) by the Board of Selectmen.  
 
7:00  PM Call Public Session to Order in Open Session 
 

1. Moment of Silence to recognize our Troops and our public safety personnel. 
 

2. Salute to the Flag.   
 

3. Vision:  Bourne is a proud community that embraces change while respecting the rich heritage of 
the town and its villages. It is a municipality based on strong fiscal government with a durable 
economy that recognizes the rights of all citizens, respects the environment, especially the coastal 
areas of the community and the amenities that it affords. Bourne embraces excellent education, 
and offers to citizens a healthy, active lifestyle. 

 

4. Mission:  Bourne will maximize opportunities for social and economic development while 
retaining an attractive, sustainable, and secure coastline and environment for the enjoyment of 
residents and visitors. Through responsible and professional leadership and in partnership with 
others, Bourne will strive to improve the quality of life for all residents living and working in the 
larger community. 
 

5. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items – Public Comments are allowed for up to a total of 12 
minutes at the beginning of each meeting.  Each speaker is limited to 3 minutes for comment.  
Based on past practice, members of the Board are not allowed to comment or respond.  

 
6. Presentation by Kate Lena (Barnstable County) regarding opioid settlement funds. 

 



Board of Selectmen’s Minutes   October 18, 2022  
 

2 
 
 

Kate Lena apologized for not having her slide presentation with her, although she did email it to 
the Board of Selectmen prior to the meeting.  Mary Jane Mastrangelo said that these slides are on 
the calendar on the Town’s website with the agenda packet. Ms. Lena introduced herself as the 
Substance Use Prevention Program Manager with the Barnstable County Department of Human 
Services.  
 
Ms. Lena said that in 2021, Massachusetts Attorney General, Maura Healey, announced a federal 
26-billion-dollar settlement agreement with opioid distributors and manufacturers for their role in 
the over prescribing of opioids, with 500 million dollars going to the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts.  The intent is to bring relief to people struggling with substance use disorder.  
Funds were provided directly to individuals as well as their families, to Towns and Cities, to 
Counties, and to the State Department of Public Health.    
 
Ms. Lena said the funds to Cities and Towns will be dispensed in yearly amounts over the next 18 
years.  In addition to the financial penalties the settlement requires industry changes, which are 
designed to prevent this from ever happening again. To support this work at the State level, the 
Department of Health has created the Opioid Recovery and Remediation Fund Advisory Council 
with representation all over the State.  She said that the funds cannot be used to fund care that is 
already being reimbursed by the State. 
 
Ms. Lena said that the 7 different topics that are the requirements for the way a municipality should 
be spending the funds are: opioid use disorder treatment, supporting people in treatment and 
recovery, connections to care, harm reduction programming, addressing the needs of criminal 
justice involved people, supporting pregnant and parenting women and their families, including 
babies with neonatal abstinence syndrome, and preventing misuse of opioids and implement 
prevention education.  
 
Ms. Lena talked about the recommendations from the Regional Substance Addiction Council 
(RSAC).  They are a group of providers working in the field as well as community members 
impacted by substance abuse. They put together their recommendations from community and 
workgroup meetings.  She gave examples of programs that could be used with the funds. There 
was some discussion about the funds being pooled with the County.  
 
Elizabeth Griffin, a School Adjustment Counselor at Upper Cape Tech., and Private Clinician  and 
Co-Founder of the Bourne Substance Free Coalition was asked to say a few words.  She said that 
she and many members of the Bourne community are committed to making a positive difference 
in kids’ lives. She said that there is a huge ripple effect with substance abuse, and they have 
recognized that this was a problem many years ago, and they have held various activities and 
created a 501c3.   

 
7. Recreation Committee recommendations – youth basketball and 4th of July Parade. 

 
Lori Cooney, Vice-Chair of the Recreation Committee (Rec. Committee), and Karen Wilson, 
Clerk of the Recreation Committee, presented the recommendations by the committee regarding 
youth basketball and the 4th of July Parade.  Ms. Cooney said that at their last meeting the Rec. 
Committee unanimously voted to recommend the Bourne Rec. Dept. discontinue the SWISH 



Board of Selectmen’s Minutes   October 18, 2022  
 

3 
 
 

basketball program to create a wider variety programs offered for active and passive recreation 
for residents of all ages and abilities. She said that 10 years ago the SWISH program was under 
volunteered, and the Rec. Dept. took it over and there is only 2 people in the Rec. Dept. that are 
trying to run the program.  She said that there is a group of people, the Bourne Basketball 
Association, that are willing to take youth basketball over. 
 
Ms. Wilson added that the Rec. Committee had a long meeting with the Bourne Basketball 
Association and there were many questions asked and answered and it seems to be for the Rec. 
Dept. that this is a win-win situation.  She said that this can provide programs for all residents of 
the Town. There was some more discussion about the Rec. Dept. losing the program, and about 
how it can be good for the Department and the Town.  
 
Jared MacDonald said that before the Board of Selectmen can give any direction to the Town 
Administrator, they need to see an outline of the direction in which the Recreation Dept. is going, 
and the timeframes for the staff. Mary Jane Mastrangelo said that they have a recommendation 
from the Recreation Committee and as a Board they need to put this back on the Town 
Administrator and the Recreation Department Director to figure out what they would do with the 
time and a transition plan if this program is freed up.   
 
Town Administrator Marlene McCollem said that these are the type of decisions that are made at 
budget time, and the budget is already set, and this is out of order.  She said that they are going 
into building the FY 24 budget, and at the end of November she will be sitting down with all 
departments to talk about their goals and priorities.  Ms. McCollem said that this program was 
built into the budget for this winter, and she feels that is disingenuous to present a budget to the 
Board of Selectmen, the Finance Committee and to Town meeting, and then not do what they said 
they were going to do.  She said that if the Board wants to change it for this winter, then she wants 
guidance and direction of what the priorities are.   
 
There was more discussion about making the change and who decides how the transition would 
take place. Bill Macuch of the Bourne Basketball Association said that they have had several 
discussions which included Krissanne Caron, the Recreation Director.  He said that at the first 
meeting Ms. Caron recommended the SWISH program dissolved for this year.  He said that at a 
subsequent meeting it was indicated that the Bourne Basketball Association will be able to use the 
Bourne Community Center in place of SWISH.  He said that they have already started registering 
people in the league for this winter.  He said that they do plan to run the league and would like to 
run the league with the Town’s blessing, but if they do not get it, they still will be running their 
league.   
 

   There was more discussion about the money that was budgeted for two full time positions and      
Ms. McCollem said it puts her in an uncomfortable position where she is changing people’s jobs 
on the fly. She said that although they will make it work, she does not recommend operating this 
way, especially with full time union employees and set operating budgets. There was a discussion 
about a timeframe to make the transition and what the transition will be, and about the next steps.  

Chair Meier said that he was informed that the Recreation Committee did not recommend taking 
on the 4th of July Parade as a task.  Ms. Wilson said that Jen Kennedy was invited to a meeting 



Board of Selectmen’s Minutes   October 18, 2022  
 

4 
 
 

and there was a discussion with her, and Ms. Caron, and a few months later, at another meeting 
they  voted on it.  She said that it doesn’t seem to fit in as a recreation, and they do not feel that 
they are the right committee for the parade.  The Recreation Department and Ms. Caron did give 
Ms. Kennedy some suggestions on how to run the parade. There was some discussion about 
forming a parade committee and obtaining 501c status.  

 
          8.         Selectmen’s Business 
  

a. Discussion and possible vote to accept donation to Library. 
b. Debrief retreat, held on August 12, 2022, and vote to confirm annual goals. 
c. Ratification of LIUNA, DPW Memorandum of Agreement – FY23-25. 
d. Discussion and possible vote on the South Side Fire Station Committee’s designer 

recommendations. 
e. Review and act upon Town Meeting articles or motions, if necessary. 

  
8.a.  Discussion and possible vote to accept donation to Library. 
 

 Voted:  Jared MacDonald moved, and Judith Froman seconded to accept a gift in the amount of 
 $86. from Ms. Lillis Palmer of Bourne. 
 Vote: 5-0-0.   

 
8.b. Debrief retreat, held on August 12, 2022, and vote to confirm annual goals. 
 
 Chair Meier listed the annual goals that were a result of the retreat that was held on August 
 12th, 2022 and the Board discussed the goals.   
 
 Voted:  Mary Jane Mastrangelo moved, and Judith Froman seconded to confirm that the Strategic 
 Plan and the  following  priority areas of focus for the Town Administrator as annual goals are:  
 Investigating and Making a Plan for Information Technology Improvements; Updating and 
 Revising Policies; 5-and-10-year Capital Plans and a 5- year Long Term Financial Plan; 
 Reorganizing the Facilities Department;  Continuing progress on  the CWMP (Comprehensive 
 Wastewater Management Plan). 
 Vote: 5-0-0.   

 
8.c. Ratification of LIUNA, DPW Memorandum of Agreement – FY23-25. 
 
 Ms. McCollem said that the Board did discuss this last week and there is a motion in front of the 

Board to ratify the Memorandum of Agreement.  
 

Voted:  Melissa Ferretti moved, and Mary Jane Mastrangelo seconded to ratify the FY23-25 
Memorandum of Agreement between the Town of Bourne and LIUNA, DPW as discussed in 
executive session on October 11, 2022, with the materials to remain privileged. 
Vote: 5-0-0.   

 
8.d. Discussion and possible vote on the South Side Fire Station Committee’s designer 
 recommendations. 



Board of Selectmen’s Minutes   October 18, 2022  
 

5 
 
 

 
 Chair Meier said that earlier in the day the Southside Fire Station Committee interviewed 2 firms. 
 The committee voted to recommend Saccoccio & Associates Architects.  
 

Voted:  Mary Jane Mastrangelo moved, and Jared MacDonald seconded to accept the 
recommendation of the South Side Fire Station Building Committee to retain Saccoccio & 
Associates, Architects, as the design firm for a new fire substation, and to further direct the Town 
Administrator to negotiate a contract with the selected firm. 
Vote: 5-0-0.   
 

8.e. Review and act upon Town Meeting articles or motions, if necessary. 
 
 Ms. McCollem said that the Voter’s Handbook has been finalized and it is on the web and at the 

printer’s and she said she is meeting with the Finance Committee tomorrow evening.  
 

9. Town Administrator Report 
 

Ms. McCollem said that she does not have anything else this evening.  
 

10.         Minutes:  8/12/22 and 9/27/22.  
 

Voted:  Mary Jane Mastrangelo moved, and Jared MacDonald seconded to approve the minutes of 
August 12th, 2022, as presented. 
Vote: 5-0-0.   
 
Voted:  Melissa Ferretti moved, and Mary Jane Mastrangelo seconded to approve the minutes of 
September 27th, 2022.   
Vote:  3-0-2.  Jared MacDonald and Judith Froman abstained. 

 
11.        Correspondence  
 

Chair Meier read aloud the correspondence: 
 

o Environmental Partners presentation of Pocasset, 4 corners. 
o Letter regarding heating oil spill at 299 Wing’s Neck Road. 
o Commonwealth search for space to lease 
o DEP letter  

 
Chair Meier said that the letter about the oil spill was regarding about 10 gallons of heating oil that 
spilled into the crawlspace. It was carbon copied to the Chair of the Board of Health, Stanley 
Andrews, and Chair Meier spoke to Mr. Andrews and he was not aware of the issue.  

 
These are all on the Town’s website. 

 

12.        Committee Reports 
 



Board of Selectmen’s Minutes   October 18, 2022  
 

6 
 
 

 Judith Froman gave out handouts from the meeting that she attended the previous evening of the  
 Cape Cod Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO). She said there were some highlights 
 from the meeting that she wanted to share with the Board.  
 
 She said that one item was the Cape Cod Safety Study report, and she provided the link to the 
 report on the handout for the Board to check out.  She went over the report with the Board 
 regarding car accidents.  There was some discussion about the accidents at the Bourne Bridge 
 Rotary.   
 
 Ms. Froman also said that the public meeting about the bridges will be on November 15th.  
  
 Mary Jane Mastrangelo said that they had a Pedestrian and Bike Path meeting last week and they 
 are  pretty much done with the 75% design of phase 1 and are getting it submitted for final review 
 by DEP and DOT.  She said they also talked about having a public information session on phase 4.   
 
13.   Other Business – None. 
 
14.   Upcoming  Meetings – Town Meeting - October 24, 2022, and November 1st is the next regular 
 Board of Selectmen meeting.  
 
15.        Adjourn 
 

Voted:  Jared MacDonald moved, and Melissa Ferretti. seconded to adjourn. 
Vote: 3-0-0.   

 
This meeting of the Bourne Board of Selectmen was adjourned at 8:53 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Kim Johnson, Recording Secretary 

 
 
 
 



Select Board 
Minutes of Tuesday, March 12, 2024 

Bourne Veterans’ Community Center  
Buzzards Bay, MA 

Or Virtually 

 
TA Marlene McCollem 
ATA Liz Hartsgrove  

Select Board  

Mary Jane Mastrangelo, Chair 
Melissa Ferretti, Vice Chair  
Anne-Marie Siroonian, Clerk  
Jared MacDonald 
Peter Meier 
 
Others: Michael Rausch, Bourne Enterprise, Jim Sullivan, Chair, Finance Committee, Tom Joyce, Wayne 
Sampson (7:03), Amanda Bongiovanni (remote), Priscilla Harcourt (remote), Carla Emmons (remote), 
Erica Flemming, Finance Director, (remote), Jennifer Copeland, Town Planner, (remote), Debora Oliviere, 
Director, Council on Aging (COA), (remote), Liz Brown (remote), Sara Salvi (remote), Judith Froman 
(remote 7:06), Michael Ellis, Town Accountant (remote 7:25), Kaitlyn Shea (remote 7:25), Jack Marshall 
(remote 7:25), John Duggan (remote 7:25), Jeanne Azarovitz (remote 7:25), Matt Sawicki, DPW Director 
(remote 7:50), and Tim Lydon, Engineering (remote 8:20). 

Note this meeting is being televised, streamed, or recorded by Bourne TV.  If anyone in the audience is 
recording or videotaping, they need to acknowledge such at this time.  Use of flash photography during 
Select Board meetings is prohibited. 
 
Michael Rausch, Bourne Enterprise, acknowledged that he was recording this meeting.  
 
If anyone from the public wishes to access the meeting, they can do so by calling the following conference 
line:  1-929-205-6099. 
 
Zoom Meeting ID:  869 5775 5505            Password:  BOURNE 
 
The Zoom Chat will not be monitored.  Participants who wish to speak must raise the hand icon until the 
Chair asks them to unmute.   
 
All items within the meeting agenda are subject to deliberation and vote(s). 
 
7:00  PM Call Public Session to Order in Open Session 
 

1. Moment of Silence to recognize our Troops and our public safety personnel.  
 
Chair Mastrangelo said that they are sending their support for the Bourne Boys’ Basketball Team at 
the MIAA Final Four game this evening.  

 

2. Salute to the Flag.   
 

 
3. Reading of the Vision and Mission Statements:   



Select Board Minutes  March 12, 2024 
 

2 
 
 

 
Vision:  Bourne is a proud community that embraces change while respecting the rich heritage of the 
town and its villages. It is a municipality based on strong fiscal government with a durable economy 
that recognizes the rights of all citizens, respects the environment, especially the coastal areas of the 
community and the amenities that it affords. Bourne embraces excellent education, and offers to its 
citizens a healthy, active lifestyle. 

 

Mission:  Bourne will maximize opportunities for social and economic development while retaining 
an attractive, sustainable, and secure coastline and environment for the enjoyment of residents and 
visitors. Through responsible and professional leadership and in partnership with others, Bourne will 
strive to improve the quality of life for all residents living and working in the larger community. 
 

4. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items – Public Comments are allowed for up to a total of 12 
minutes at the beginning of each meeting.  Each speaker is limited to 3 minutes for comment.  (Board 
members are unable to respond due to posting requirements of the Open Meeting Law). 
 

5. Joint Meeting with Finance Committee – presentation and discussion – FY 2023 audited 
financial statements by CLA. 

 
Finance Committee Chair Jim Sullivan called the Finance Committee meeting to order at 7:03 PM. 
 
Sara Salvi, Audit Director on the Town’s Financial Statements and Single Audits, said that she has 
been on the town’s audit for about 5 to 6 years.  Ms. Salvi gave a slide presentation on the Town of 
Bourne’s Financial Statements Audit.  
 
Chair Mastrangelo said that the full audit is available on the Town’s website under the Finance 
Department Audits, and this is the FY23 Audit. 
 
Ms. Salvi explained the terms of engagement and said that they had not changed.  She said that from 
year to year they express opinions on whether the basic financial statements are presented, in all 
material respects, in accordance with GAAP.  She said that Bourne received an unmodified opinion, 
which is the best opinion that you can get, and that the financial statements are fairly presented, in 
accordance with GAAP.  She said that they also express opinions related to federal awards and 
programs.   
 
Ms. Salvi said that they provide reports on internal controls over financial reporting and compliance 
with laws, regulations, contracts, grants, and compliance related to major federal award programs.  
She also said that they provide a management letter based on identified control deficiencies. 
 
Ms. Salvi said that regarding the single audit, they audited ARPA and ESSER as the major grants 
this year, and they are waiting on finalizing compliance procedures for the ARPA program.  She said 
that there is nothing to report at this time. Ms. Salvi also talked about all the financial highlights 
which included the governmental activities, the General Fund, the Sewer Enterprise Fund, the 
Landfill Enterprise Fund, long term obligations, OPEB, and the pension plan. 
 



Select Board Minutes  March 12, 2024 
 

3 
 
 

Finance Committee Chair Jim Sullivan asked Ms. Salvi to define discount rate in this context.  She 
said that the discount rate is a rate that is determined by the actuary which is a combination of a few 
things.  She said that it is described in the actuarial evaluation.   
 
Ms. Salvi said that for the Management Letter there are two comments reported, which are DPW  
Inventory Tracking and DPW Capital Expenses.  She said that as part of their audit procedures, they 
investigate internal controls over financial reporting.  She said that some years they focus on a certain 
department, and some years they focus on a certain control that is going to have a major impact on 
financial reporting.  
 
Ms. Salvi said that this year they looked at DPW as a department and their first recommendation is 
inventory tracking.  She said that there are no formal procedures for inventory tracking currently and 
they recommended a software that the DPW currently has, and they recommend that they utilize it.  
 
Ms. Salvi said that regarding DPW Capital Expenses, it is in relation to operating expenses being 
charged to capital line items.  She said that they did not discover this in their audit, and it was brought 
to their attention by the Finance team.  She said that adjustments were made by the town prior to the 
audit.  She said that they did look at a few purchased items, and they were not being charged to the 
correct lines.  She said that their recommendation is to get some internal controls in place, and to 
make sure that those expenses are being charged to the right budget line.  
 
Finance Director Erica Flemming summarized the responses to the Management Letter. She said that 
regarding the DPW inventory tracking, she said that DPW has begun the process of re-implementing 
the use of the digital asset management software tools. She said that are also evaluating other software 
to find a program that will maximize the efficiency of what they need software to do.  She said that 
regarding DPW Capital Expenses, she said that they came up with a plan that the DPW Director and 
the Finance Department will review procedures to ensure that expenditures are being properly 
charged.  
 
Anne-Marie Siroonian asked if there was a reason why the inventory software was not being used.  
Town Administrator Marlene McCollem said that she cannot answer that. She said that she does not 
know why or when they stopped using the software.  Ms. Salvi said that her team did ask that question, 
and the response was manpower – they said that the manpower to operate a system like that, and to 
do their day-to-day activities, made it unfeasible at that time to use the software.  
 
Chair Mastrangelo added that the town has been working hard and has taken great strides at being 
strong financially.  She gave kudos to the staff, administration, the Finance Committee, and the Select 
Board for a good job.  
 

Voted:  Tom Joyce moved, and Wayne Sampson seconded to adjourn the Finance Committee 
meeting. 
Vote: Carla Emmons – yes, Priscilla Harcourt – yes, Amanda Bongiovanni – yes, Wayne Sampson 
– yes, Tom Joyce – yes, and Chair Sullivan – yes. 6-0-0. 

The Finance Committee meeting was adjourned at 7:39 PM. 
 

6. Update from the South Side Fire Station Building Committee 



Select Board Minutes  March 12, 2024 
 

4 
 
 

 
Wayne Sampson, South Side Fire Station Building Committee Chair, said that they put out another 
RFP last month and they did not approve the one response that they received because it was out of 
the area, and for the cost.  He said that they knew that this day might be coming relative to what their 
options are.  He said that at their meeting earlier in the day, the South Station Fire Station Building 
Committee voted to recommend to the Select Board, and seek their support, to remove approximately 
3 acres of land out of Chapter 97 land on Shore Drive, north of the ballfield.  He said that the reason 
for this is that they cannot find any available land in town, and that 70% of all calls for service on the 
south side of the bridge lay in that overlay district.  He said that in addition  to this, they will preserve 
all the recreational facilities at both locations.  He said this will also be a huge savings to the 
community.   
 

Peter Meier said that part of the process to move forward is that they first need to go to the 
Conservation Commission.  He said that if anyone takes anything out of Article 97, it needs to be a 
unanimous vote from the Conservation Commission.  He said that after that the Select Board would 
have to put an article in at Special and Annual  Town Meetings, which would need a 2/3rds vote. He 
said that if that does happen, then it goes to Boston, and there is a whole separate process there as 
well.  
 

Chair Mastrangelo added that when you want to take money out of Chapter 97 land, you must 
demonstrate that there is no feasible alternative.  She said that this information needs to be available  
to the public.  She said that the South Side Fire Station webpage needs to be updated. She said that 
documentation about all the sites that have been looked at needs to be updated, and she would like 
them to present this documentation to the Select Board before they go to the Conservation Committee.   
 

Voted:  Peter Meier moved, and Anne-Marie Siroonian seconded, to support the South Side Fire 
Station Building Committee’s recommendation to move forward with taking some land out of Article 
97 from the Shore Road property for a fire station.  
Vote: 5-0-0. 

7. Consent Agenda: 
 

a. Library donation totaling $125.04. 
b. Seasonal licenses renewal for Jarvis, Inc d/b/a The Chart Room at 180 Shore Road 

i. Common Victualler, Common Victualler All Alcoholic, Weekday and Sunday 
Entertainment. 

c. Class II Auto Dealer Renewal – Cape Cod Restoration Inc. at 4 Crane Circle.  
d. Authorize the DPW to use Ch. 90 funds to update the pavement management plan. 
e. Appointment of Richard Kantor as a full-time member of the Historic Commission with a 

term expiring June 30, 2024. 
 

Voted:  Peter Meier moved, and Jared MacDonald seconded to approve the consent agenda. 
Vote: 5-0-0. 

8. Review Town Meeting Articles 
 

a. Continued discussion – septic easement request from 1 Monument Avenue. 



Select Board Minutes  March 12, 2024 
 

5 
 
 

 
Ms. McCollem said that this is a request from the homeowner to use part of the road layout for 
an advanced I/A septic system to replace a cesspool.  She said that the Select Board had 
previously asked DPW and the Health Department for some recommendations as far as 
conditions that would make the staff confident that this is something that the town could move 
forward with, if desired.  She said that there are memos from both DPW and the Health 
Department in the Select Board’s meeting packet.   
 

Matt Sawicki, DPW Director, said that they would like a performance bond from the contractor 
to protect the town in case there is any damage to the road.  He listed some other requirements 
that the DPW would have, with one being that a temporary 6-foot fence be set up around the 
excavation, and another that they reach out to the Bourne Water District regarding separations in 
water and septic pipes.  He said they would also want them to work within a certain timeframe.   
 

Ms. McCollem said that this is a private request from a property owner, and rather than having it 
come up through a petitioned article, her preference is that it is a Select Board sponsored article 
due to logistical purposes and control of the article.   
 

Voted:  Peter Meier moved, and Anne-Marie Siroonian seconded to sponsor an article for the 
easement and to accept the recommendations of the DPW Director for terms and conditions to 
be a part of the agreement.  
Vote: 5-0-0. 

b. Article 6 – Committee Reports 
 

Ms. McCollem said that this is a standing standard article to allow committees, boards, and 
officers to make a report to Town Meeting.  She said that the only group that she knows that 
intends to make a report so far is the South Side Fire Station Committee.  
 

c. Article 15 – Human Services Grant Program 
 

Deb Oliviere, COA Director, said that she is the Co-Chair of the Human Service Committee.  She 
said that this article is to see if the town will vote to raise the appropriated funds in the sum of 
$20,000. for the Human Service Program.  She said that this has been level funded at $20,000. 
for the past few years.  She said that this program awards grants to about 9 to 10 local human 
service agencies every year. Ms. Oliviere said that they are all non-profit human service agencies 
that service Bourne residents, and the grants are awarded in August.  
 

Chair Mastrangelo asked about the number of applications that they received last year.  Ms. 
Oliviere said that they had 10 applications and the total dollar amount requested was $40,200., 
and they only had $20,000. to award to those 10 agencies that applied.  The year before they had 
requests of $32,000. Chair Mastrangelo would like to see the requests received to determine if 
they need to think about additional funding in the Fall.   
 

d. Article 16 – Reduce membership on Cultural Council 
 

Chair Mastrangelo said that due to a lot of people being interested in serving on the Cultural 
Council they increased the membership.  She said that interest has waned, and now they need to 



Select Board Minutes  March 12, 2024 
 

6 
 
 

decrease the membership to be able to meet quorums.  There was some discussion about the 
membership numbers. 
 

e. Article 17 – Bylaws scriveners’ errors 
 
Ms. McCollem said that there are about 11 instances in the general bylaws where the word thirty 
is followed by (31), and they would like to change it to thirty (30), as it should be.  
 

f. Article 18 – Capital Bylaw, increase threshold to $25,000. 
 
Ms. McCollem said that this came out of a discussion with the Financial Policy Working Group.  
She said that right now there are two thresholds in the Capital Bylaw - one for $10,000. for 
equipment, and the other is $20,000. for items that are associated with structures.  She said that 
$10,000. really is not enough.  
 

g. Zoning: 
 Article 21 - Section 1238:  SPR Traffic and circulation plan. 

 
Town Planner, Jennifer Copeland, said that Article 21 is Section 1238 which is for 
traffic and internal circulation.  She said that this article would delete the chapter 
language and keep the CMR to encompass the entire section of that fire code. 

 
 Article 22 – Section 1242:  Change special permit time lapse from two to three   

years. 
 

Ms. Copeland said that Article 22 is for Section 1242.1 to change the 2-year time 
limit to 3 years for consistency with Chapter 40A of the Zoning Act.  

 Article 23 – Section 3343:  Remove June 1, 2020, sunset date for Interim Egress 
Control in the Traffic Management District. 
 

Ms. Copeland said that Article 23 is to remove the expired sunset date of 2020 from 
the Interim Egress Control section, so that there is no expiration date. She said that 
this section was originally adopted in 2006 and was extended once to 2020.   
 

 Article 24 – Section 2821:  Table of Allowable Users. 
 

Ms. Copeland said that Article 23 is to correct an incorrect reference number from 
4120 to 4110.  

 Article 25 – Section 4120:  Accessory Dwelling update. 
 

Ms. Copeland said that Article 25 is to update the Accessory Dwelling Bylaw.   She 
showed some slides with the proposed accessory dwelling bylaw.  She said that the 
current bylaw requires a special permit, and it regulated through 4120. She also gave 
a housing summary for Bourne regarding accessory dwellings.  She said that there 
are many goals of the proposed amendments, and they are listed in the shown slides. 



Select Board Minutes  March 12, 2024 
 

7 
 
 

Chair Mastrangelo said that she has been to many meeting regarding this bylaw, and 
a lot of good work has been done on it.  Priscilla Harcourt said that the work done 
on this has been very good, and it is in line with the intent of the town. She gave 
examples of another town and how Bourne has done a very good job with their 
accessory dwelling bylaw update.   

 
9. Town Administrator’s Report 

 
Ms. McCollem said that the Division of Marine Fisheries held a stakeholder meeting yesterday 
regarding the classification of shellfish growing areas in Buzzards Bay, and it only pertains to land 
off the New Bedford and Fairhaven coasts, and they anticipate studying the canal area in the future. 
 
Ms. McCollem said that regarding the Tobey Island ramp repairs, work is anticipated to begin in 
early April with paving in early May.  
 
Ms. McCollem said that DPW is going to be installing a small, town seal emblem on street signs for 
town owned roads, which will assist the crews in confirming that they are working on public roads. 
 
Ms. McCollem also said that she attended a briefing about a county initiative to establish a shared 
regional housing services program, which could potentially be a good opportunity for Bourne.  
 
Ms. McCollem also said that by the end of February, ISWM had diverted 2.54 tons of food waste 
from the landfill.  She also wanted to remind everyone to renew their dog licenses.  
 

10. Authorize the Town Administrator to sign the HOME program modification request 
documents for 20 High Ridge Drive. 
 

11. Voted:  Peter Meier moved, and Jared MacDonald seconded to authorize the Town Administrator to 
sign the HOME program modification request documents for 20 High Ridge Drive. 
Vote: 5-0-0. 
 

12. Policy 
 
a.  2nd reading – Layout & Acceptance of Private Ways by petition.  

 
Chair Mastrangelo said that this has been reviewed by Town Counsel and he has made some 
comments.  She said that they made the few changes that were discussed at the last meeting.  
 

Voted:  Peter Meier moved, and Anne-Marie Siroonian seconded to move this to 3rd reading. 
Vote: 5-0-0. 

13. Minutes:  12/5/23, 2/6/24, 2/13/24, 2/20/24. 
 

Voted:  Peter Meier moved, and Anne-Marie Siroonian seconded to approve the minutes of 12/5/23. 
Vote: 5-0-0. 



Select Board Minutes  March 12, 2024 
 

8 
 
 

Voted:  Peter Meier moved, and Anne-Marie Siroonian seconded to approve the minutes of 2/6/24. 
Vote: 5-0-0. 

Voted:  Peter Meier moved, and Melissa Ferretti seconded to approve the minutes of 2/13/24. 
Vote: 5-0-0. 

Voted:  Peter Meier moved, and Jared MacDonald seconded to approve the minutes of 2/20/24. 
Vote: 5-0-0. 

14. Committee reports 
 
Mr. Meier said that he attended the Executive Session meeting of the Police Building Committee, 
and he attended the South Side Fire Station Building Committee meeting. He said that the Fire Station 
committee presented earlier.  
 
Melissa Ferretti said that she attended the Joint Base Cape Cod monthly meeting this past week.  She 
said that she would like to coordinate with Chair Mastrangelo and Ms. McCollem before the next 
meeting to see if anything should be shared with the group by her.  
 
Ms. Siroonian said that CITAC met, and they are having another meeting this Thursday.  She said 
that one of the big issues right now is the Digital Equity plan that just came out.  She also said that 
she attended a Mass Development meeting with Joint Base Cape Cod and all the constituents.  She 
said that it is important to establish good communication with Mass Development and they are in the 
beginning stages of their feasibility study, and it is an important process that the town needs to have 
a voice in from the start.  
 
Ms. Ferretti said that she attended the Historic Commission meeting earlier in the day and she brought 
some literature to the Commission regarding the town seal. She said that it was a good meeting, and 
it was nice to discuss some of the elements of the seal, and it is on the move.  
 
Chair Mastrangelo said that she attended a meeting with the Cape and Island Water protection 
Management Board, and they are looking to make a change to the bylaws that would change the ways 
projects are funded to continue the 25% subsidy for projects.  
 
Ms. Siroonian said that the first Bourne Community Engagements Committee meeting was held, and 
they had recommended language change from Town Counsel with respect to the application process.  
She said that they are taking out the 501(c)(3) requirement.  

 

15.  Correspondence 
 

 Anne-Marie Siroonian read aloud the correspondence for March 12th, 2024: 
 

 DEP letter – Fire Training Area 1 Lysimeter Work Plan.  
 90 Adams St., Sagamore Boosters reconveyance.  
 Cape Cod Regional Pond Monitoring Program 2023.  
 Cape Cod Commission Developments of Regional Impact Funding.  
 Cape Cod Regional Pond Monitoring Program 2023 data.  
 J. Spinale – talent bank form – ZBA – Bylaw Committee.  



Select Board Minutes  March 12, 2024 
 

9 
 
 

 Freshwater Initiative Stakeholder Engagement Process.  
 Steamship Authority Parking.  
 Conservation Notice to Abutters – 166 Wings Neck Rd. – Septic.  
 Letter re former AmeriGas leased property. 
 DEP Waterways application – pier and ramp at 394 Scraggy Neck.  
 DEP letter – CSE Phase 2 Ammunition Supply Point. 
 

These are all on the Town’s website. 
 

16.  Future Agenda Items. 
 
 Mr. Meier said that they should have Mass Maritime come in over the summer.   

 
17.  Next meeting dates:    

 
March 13 – Marijuana Policy Workshop 
March 19: April 2 ,9, & 16. 
 

           Chair Mastrangelo said that the legislative update will be April 30th.  
 

18.  Adjourn 
 

Voted:  Anne-Marie Siroonian moved, and Peter Meier seconded to adjourn. 
Vote: 5-0-0. 

 

        This meeting of the Bourne Select Board was adjourned at 9:01 PM. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Kim Johnson, Recording Secretary 

 

Reasonable accommodations for people with disabilities are available upon request. Include a 
description of the accommodation you will need, including as much detail as you can and include a way 
we can contact you if we need more information.  Please allow advance notice.  Send an email to 
kthut@townofbourne.com or call the Town Administrator’s Office at 508-759-0600 x1503. 
 



 
 

 

Select Board’s Correspondence 

April 2, 2024 

A.  DEP letter – Old K Range Munitions Response Area 

B. DEP letter – Feasibility Study Otis Gun Club Munitions Response Area 

C. 7 Gainsboro Drive – Waterways Regulation License 

D. Barnstable Co. Sheriff’s Office – Year in Review 2023 

E. Plymouth Co. Parking Quarterly 

F. Upper Cape Tech – FY25 budget 

G. Upper Cape Tech 2.8.24 Committee minutes 

H. Xfinity channel changes 



 

 
 
 

 

 

Maura T. Healey 

Governor 

 

Kimberley Driscoll 

Lieutenant Governor 

 

Rebecca L. Tepper 

Secretary 

 

Bonnie Heiple 
   Commissioner 

 

This information is available in alternate format. Please contact Melixza Esenyie at 617-626-1282. 

TTY# MassRelay Service 1-800-439-2370 

MassDEP Website: www.mass.gov/dep 

Printed on Recycled Paper 
 

 

 March 25, 2024 
 
 

Air Force Civil Engineer Center/JBCC 
Attn: Ms. Kimberly J. Gill 
Remediation Program Manager 
322 East Inner Road 
Otis ANG Base, Massachusetts 02542 
 

RE: BOURNE – BWSC 
Release Tracking Number: 4-0000037 
Joint Base Cape Cod (JBCC) 
Draft Record of Decision, Old K Range 
Munitions response Area (EPA Operable 
Unit 26), Comments 

 
Dear Ms. Gill: 
 
The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) has reviewed the document 
“Draft Record of Decision, Old K Range Munitions Response Area (EPA Operable Unit 26)” (Draft ROD) 
dated January 2024.  The Draft ROD was prepared by the Air Force Civil Engineer Center (AFCEC) to present 
the selected remedy chosen by the United States Air Force (USAF) to eliminate or mitigate exposure to 
munitions and explosives of concern (MEC), munitions constituents (MC) and risks to human health and 
ecological receptors at the Military Munitions Response Program (MMRP) Old K Range Munitions 
Response Area (MRA).  The Old K Range MRA is currently regulated under the MMRP managed by the 
USAF at JBCC.   
 
The 145-acre Old K Range MRA is a former small arms and rocket range contained within the northern 
portion of Camp Edwards and the Upper Cape Water Supply Reserve, originally leased from the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts to the Army in 1940 and utilized primarily during the Second World 
War.  The U.S. Coast Guard (USCG) is the current tenant at the Old K Range MRA and has been leasing the 
property from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts for use as a Communications Station.  Numerous 
inert and live ordnance items have been recovered from the Old K Range MRA.  MassDEP has the following 
comments on the Draft ROD. 
 
1. MassDEP reviewed the AFCEC Memorandum of Resolution (MOR2) dated April 6, 2023, issued for 

MassDEP comments dated November 9, 2022, December 23, 2022, and March 7, 2023, for the 
document “Draft Proposed Plan for Old K Range Munitions Response Area” (the Draft Proposed 
Plan) dated October 2022.  The MOR2 included a revised draft of the Proposed Plan dated April 2023.  
MassDEP additionally reviewed the AFCEC MOR3 dated June 26, 2023, issued for the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) comments dated May 10, 2023, for the Draft Proposed Plan.  
The MOR3 included a red-lined strikeout version of the Proposed Plan (the Draft Final Proposed Plan) 
dated June 2023.  MassDEP provided comments to the MOR2 and MOR3 on August 28, 2023.  The 



Release Tracking Number: 4-0000037                                                                                            Page 2 of 5 
 

AFCEC provided a response to those comments on September 7, 2023, and requested that MassDEP 
provide any further comments during the 30-day public comment period beginning on September 8, 
2023, on the Draft Final Proposed Plan.  The “Final Proposed Plan for the Old K Range Munitions 
Response Area” (final Proposed Plan) was issued by the AFCEC on October 19, 2023; however, 
MassDEP comments on the Draft Final Proposed Plan remain unresolved.  MassDEP recommends that 
the AFCEC, the EPA and MassDEP meet to discuss the resolution of MassDEP comments on the Draft 

Final Proposed Plan and Draft Record of Decision, with the goal of creating a path forward for the Old 
K Range MRA that is mutually agreeable. 

 
MassDEP provided the following oral comment during the AFCEC public meeting on September 13, 
2023, on the Draft Final Proposed Plan: 

 

• The Old K Range Munitions Response Area Draft Final Proposed Plan was prepared by the Air 
Force Civil Engineer Center to identify the preferred remedy to eliminate or mitigate exposure to 
munitions and explosives and risks to human health and the environment at the Old K Range.  The 
remedy is necessary to protect public health, safety, and the environment from explosive hazards 
and actual or threatened releases of hazardous substances into the environment.  The 
Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection will state a preference for a remedy for 
the Munitions Response Area after consideration of comments received from the public.  At this 
time MassDEP would like to make the following statement for the Administrative Record:  

 
As presented in the Proposed Plan, the Air Force’s preferred remedy for the Old K Range is long-
term management with groundwater monitoring, unexploded ordnance construction support, 
annual investigations for munitions items, land use controls, and five-year remedy reviews.  Under 
this remedy, long-term management will include the implementation of land use controls and the 
use of physical, administrative, and legal measures to limit the possibility that people might be 
exposed to munitions and explosives.  

 
The U.S. Coast Guard is the current tenant at the property where the Old K Range is located and 
has been leasing the property from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts for use as a 
Communication Station since 1976.  The Old K Range is located within the Upper Cape Water 
Supply Reserve.  This Water Supply Reserve is co-located with the northern 15,000-acre training 
area known as Camp Edwards.  The Water Supply Reserve was established by Chapter 47 of the 
Acts of 2002 as public conservation land dedicated to three primary purposes: first, water supply 
and wildlife habitat protection; second, the development and construction of public water supply 
systems; and third, the use and training of military forces of the Commonwealth; provided that, 
such military use and training is compatible with the natural resource purposes of water supply 
and wildlife habitat protection.  The future use of the property is anticipated to remain consistent 
with current use by the U.S. Coast Guard as a Communications Station as part of its mission to 
ensure safe maritime shipping and transit.  

 
The Air Force preferred remedy does not include complete subsurface removal of munitions and 
explosives and therefore does not mitigate an unacceptable explosive safety hazard and the 
potential for explosives leaching to the Sole Source Aquifer within the Upper Cape Water Supply 
Reserve.  The remedy was selected by the Air Force because of current limited access to the Old 
K Range and of a series of difficulties/concerns in implementing a more comprehensive remedy, 
including extensive underground infrastructure around the antennas and the radiation hazard 
posed by the antennas to workers who might be conducting subsurface munitions removal.  



Release Tracking Number: 4-0000037                                                                                            Page 3 of 5 
 

Despite these rationales, it is MassDEP’s position that the Air Force preferred remedy poses an 
unacceptably elevated public safety risk on land owned by the Commonwealth.  

 
MassDEP’s first preference was that the Air Force implement remedy alternative “5” which 
consists of the measures in Alternative 3, the Air Force’s preferred remedy, with the addition of 
full munitions and explosives removal at the Rocket Range Munitions Response Site, which is the 
area shaded red in the Air Force’s slides 8 and 15.  The munitions and explosives removal would 
be conducted at as close to 100% as achievable given the presence of and interference from the 
USCG antenna’s above and underground infrastructure.  Full munitions and explosives removal of 
the Rocket Range Munitions Response Site would mitigate the excessive risk posed by the 
presence of munitions in that area.  According to the Air Force’s Munitions and Explosives of 
Concern Hazard Assessment, this Rocket Range currently scores as a Hazard Level of “2”, the 
second highest potential explosives hazard condition.  The same assessment concluded that 
subsurface removal of munitions and explosives would lower the hazard level to a “4”, the lowest 
explosive hazard condition at a site where explosives could have been used.  MassDEP’s first 
preference stems from a concern that leaving a Hazard Level of “2” will be unacceptable to the 
Commonwealth.  

 
MassDEP could support the Air Force preferred remedy, but only if the Air Force commits to full 
munitions and explosives removal of the Rocket Range Munitions Response Site if and to the 
extent the U.S. Coast Guard Communications Station is rebuilt, reoriented, decommissioned or 
otherwise substantially modified in the future.  To date, the Air Force has only committed to 
reevaluating the preferred remedy if the land use changes, but such a commitment is insufficient 
and MassDEP maintains that the Air Force must make a more definite commitment to munitions 
and explosives removal.  

 
In summary, fuller munitions and explosives removal of the Rocket Range Munitions Response 
Site would reduce the risk from the explosive hazard associated and reduce potential impacts to 
the Sole Source Aquifer/Upper Cape Water Supply Reserve from future releases associated with 
weathered or leaking munitions and explosives that remain at the Old K Range.  Fuller munitions 
removal is effective, implementable, and is significantly more protective than relying on land use 
maintenance and controls only, to prevent exposure to munitions and explosives left in place. 

 
The AFCEC response on page 3-5, Section 3, Responsiveness Summary in the Draft ROD to the 
MassDEP oral comment is not adequate.  As stated in the Draft ROD, the Air Force has only committed 
to reevaluating the preferred remedy if the land use changes.  MassDEP maintains that to receive 
MassDEP support for the selected remedy, the Air Force must make a more definite commitment to 
munitions and explosives removal of the Rocket Range Munitions Response Site.   

   
2. Page 2-1, Section 2, Decision Summary, 2.1, Site Name, Location, and Brief Description: 

Please add the following text to the third paragraph, “The Upper Cape Water Supply Reserve is co-
located with Camp Edwards’ 15,000-acre northern training area and was established by Chapter 47 of 
the Acts of 2002, as public conservation land dedicated to three primary purposes: water supply and 
wildlife habitat protection; the development and construction of public water supply systems; and the 
use and training of military forces of the commonwealth provided that such military use and training 
is compatible with the natural resource purposes of water supply and wildlife habitat protection.  The 
Old K Range MRA and USCG Communications Station Boston are located within the boundary of the 



Release Tracking Number: 4-0000037                                                                                            Page 4 of 5 
 

Upper Cape Water Supply Reserve and, as such, use of the land must align with the purposes outlined 
in Chapter 47 of the Acts of 2002.” 
 

3. Page 2-39, Section 2, Decision Summary, 2.11, Comparative Analysis of Alternatives, 2.11.2, 
Comparison of Alternatives, State Acceptance: 
The text states “MassDEP reviewed the remedial alternatives presented for the Old K Range MRA 
and reviewed comments received during the 30-day public comment period and supports USAF’s 
and EPA’s selection of Alternative 3, LTM with Groundwater Monitoring, UXO Construction Support, 
and Full Annual MEC Sweeps.”  MassDEP does not support the selection of Alternative 3, LTM with 
Groundwater Monitoring, UXO Construction Support, and Full Annual MEC Sweeps.  To receive 
MassDEP support for the selected remedy, the Air Force must make a more definite commitment to 
munitions and explosives removal of the Rocket Range Munitions Response Site.  Unless the selected 
remedy is revised to address MassDEP concerns, please change the text to “MassDEP reviewed the 
remedial alternatives presented for the Old K Range MRA and comments received during the 30-day 
public comment period.  MassDEP's position is that the AFCEC’s preferred remedy poses an 
unacceptably elevated public safety risk on land owned by the Commonwealth.  MassDEP’s first 
preference is for the AFCEC to implement remedy Alternative 5, which consists of the measures in 
Alternative 3, with the addition of full munitions and explosives removal at the Rocket Range 
Munitions Response Site.”  
 

4. Page 2-42, Table 2-9, Comparative Analysis of Alternatives, State Acceptance: 
The text states, “MassDEP has reviewed the remedial alternatives presented for the Old K Range 
MRA and reviewed comments received during the 30-day public comment period and supports 
USAF’s and EPA’s selection of Alternative 3, LTM with Groundwater Monitoring, UXO Construction 
Support, and Full Annual MEC Sweeps.”  Please change the text to “MassDEP's position is that the 
AFCEC’s preferred remedy poses an unacceptably elevated public safety risk on land owned by the 
Commonwealth.  MassDEP’s first preference is for the AFCEC to implement remedy Alternative 5, 
which consists of the measures in Alternative 3, with the addition of full munitions and explosives 
removal at the Rocket Range Munitions Response Site.” 
 

5. Page 3-5, Section 3, Responsiveness Summary, 3.1.2, Oral Comments Received During Public 
Comment Period, Oral Comment 1 (MassDEP): 
The AFCEC response to the MassDEP oral comment states “Per CERCLA guidance, contingency 
remedies may be appropriate when there is significant uncertainty about the ability of remedial 
options to achieve cleanup levels (e.g., cleanup of an aquifer to MCLs or non-zero MCLGs or for 
MMRP, mitigation of human direct contact with MEC).  For example, a contingency ROD may be 
appropriate when the performance of a treatment technology (or a demonstrated technology being 
used on a waste for which performance data are not available) appears to be the most promising 
option, but additional testing will be needed during remedial design to verify the technology’s 
performance capabilities; in this case, a more “proven approach” could be identified as a 
contingency remedy.”  MassDEP notes that the referenced contingency remedy is not stated in the 
description of the selected remedy in Section 2.12, Selected Remedy.  MassDEP recommends that the 
AFCEC, the EPA and MassDEP meet to discuss the contingency remedy/contingency ROD referenced 
in the AFCEC response to the MassDEP comment. 
 

Please incorporate this letter into the Administrative Record for the Old K Range Munitions Response Area 
for the Military Munitions Response Program at Joint Base Cape Cod.  If you have any questions regarding 
this letter, please contact me at (617) 694-2644. 



Release Tracking Number: 4-0000037                                                                                            Page 5 of 5 
 

Sincerely,  
 
 

  
Leonard J. Pinaud, Chief                                                                                     
Federal Site Management  
Bureau of Waste Site Cleanup 
 

Ec:   Upper Cape Select Boards  
Upper Cape Boards of Health  
JBCC Cleanup Team                                                                               
MassDEP Boston/Southeast Region 
 
MassDCAMM (Division of Capital Asset Management & Maintenance)  
Attn: Martha McMahon, Esq., Deputy General Counsel  

 
Steven Simpson, Program Manager, Environmental Health & Safety, USCG Base Cape Cod 



 

 
 
 

 

 

Maura T. Healey 

Governor 

 

Kimberley Driscoll 

Lieutenant Governor 

 

Rebecca L. Tepper 

Secretary 

 

Bonnie Heiple 
   Commissioner 

 

This information is available in alternate format. Please contact Melixza Esenyie at 617-626-1282. 

TTY# MassRelay Service 1-800-439-2370 

MassDEP Website: www.mass.gov/dep 

Printed on Recycled Paper 
 

 

 March 25, 2024 
 
 

Air Force Civil Engineer Center/JBCC 
Attn: Ms. Kimberly J. Gill 
Remediation Program Manager 
322 East Inner Road 
Otis ANG Base, Massachusetts 02542 
 

RE: BOURNE – BWSC 
Release Tracking Number: 4-0000037 
Joint Base Cape Cod (JBCC) 
Draft Revision 1 Feasibility Study, Otis Gun 
Club Munitions Response Area, Skeet and 
Trap Range Munitions Response Site, 
Pistol Range Munitions Response Site, 
Comments 

 
Dear Ms. Gill: 
 
The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) has reviewed the document 
“Draft Revision 1 Feasibility Study, Otis Gun Club Munitions Response Area, Skeet and Trap Range 
Munitions Response Site, Pistol Range Munitions Response Site” (Draft Revised Feasibility Study) dated 
January 2024.  The Draft Revised Feasibility Study develops and evaluates potential remedial alternatives 
for addressing lead from small arms historically used at the Otis Gun Club Munitions Response Area (MRA).  
The MRA includes three contiguous small arms military munitions response sites (MRS) referred to as the 
Skeet and Trap Range MRS, Rifle Range MRS, and Pistol Range MRS.  In addition, MassDEP has reviewed 
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) comment letter dated March 8, 2024, to the Air Force 
Civil Engineer Center on the Draft Revised Feasibility Study.  MassDEP supports the comments made by 
the EPA. 
 
MassDEP provided comments on February 3, 2021, on the "Draft Feasibility Study, Otis Gun Club 
Munitions Response Area, Skeet and Trap Range Munitions Response Site, Pistol Range Munitions 
Response Site" dated November 2020 (the Draft FS).  The AFCEC provided responses on July 29, 2021, to 
the MassDEP comments.  MassDEP comments on the Draft FS have been addressed and MassDEP has no 
comments on the Draft Revised Feasibility Study. 
   
Please incorporate this letter into the Administrative Record for the Otis Gun Club Munitions Response 
Area for the Military Munitions Response Program at Joint Base Cape Cod.  If you have any questions 
regarding this letter, please contact me at (617) 694-2644. 
 
 
 



Release Tracking Number: 4-0000037                                                                                                                       Page 2 of 2 
 

Sincerely,  
 
 

  
Leonard J. Pinaud, Chief                                                                                     
Federal Site Management  
Bureau of Waste Site Cleanup 
 

Ec:   Upper Cape Select Boards  
Upper Cape Boards of Health  
JBCC Cleanup Team                                                                               
MassDEP Boston/Southeast Region 









Photograph by Parth Patel

year in 
review
2 0 2 3

Barnstable County Sheriff’s Office



The Barnstable County Sheriff’s Office has always been dedicated to improving public safety. This historic and overarching 
goal has not changed. With a new sheriff in office, however, the approach is different. In 2023, we set our sights on three 
main objectives: prevention of criminal behavior, providing quality care for incarcerated individuals, and helping the indi-
viduals succeed once they are back in society.

As one of 14 Massachusetts sheriffs, the BCSO runs a correctional facility that houses people who have committed lower-level 
crimes with sentences no longer than 2.5 years. Our incarcerated individuals are our neighbors, family members, employees, 
and students. The majority of them have grown 
up with severe trauma, addiction, and/or men-
tal health struggles. Many have been abused as 
children, raised in foster care, and multi-genera-
tional dysfunction. 
 
We must address the root causes of their behav-
ior if we want them to get well. That means pro-
viding mental and medical care, job placement, 
and vocational classes while they are here and 
connecting them to appropriate services when 
they are released. 
   
To that end, we reallocated our resources by 
ending our relationship with U.S. Immigration 
and Customs Enforcement. We gave away our 
patrol boat. We ended our contract with a pri-
vate for-profit healthcare vendor and hired our 
own in-house Health Services Department. We 
invested in Youth Programs in 2023 and plan to 
do even more in 2024.  
 
Bridges are an important symbol of this new 
course of action. Only by creating relationships 
with outside organizations, can we build a safety 
net that assists both youth-at-risk and those already in the criminal justice system. 
 
Providing quality care means caring for the staff. Among other professional development and support, we added mental 
health first aid classes for the employees this year to bolster a training department that is already second to none. It’s excit-
ing to think about what we can accomplish together in 2024.
 
A new system is rising that prioritizes rehabilitation and treatment. It will improve public safety for all of us. 
 
Very truly yours,

Donna D. Buckley
Barnstable County Sheriff
 



welcome to the Barnstable County Sheriff’s Office

The Barnstable County Sheriff’s Office was 
founded in 1692. We have evolved with the 
criminal justice system in both our physical 
spaces and our philosophies. The original six-
cell “Old Jail” at 3353 Main Street, Barnstable 
operated from 1692 to 1820 and is the oldest 
wooden jail in the United States. For the past 20 
years, the Barnstable County Correctional Facil-
ity has been at 6000 Sheriff’s Place, in Bourne. 

As it has for centuries, our main mission today 
continues to be operation of a correctional fa-
cility and the care and custody of incarcerated 
individuals. 

We are a part of the Cape’s public safety com-
munity in many other ways. Between our Re-
gional Emergency Communications Center 
and our Bureau of Criminal Investigations, we 
respond to most public safety emergencies 
throughout Cape Cod on a daily basis. Whether 
it’s our officers participating in undercover in-
vestigations, or our youth programs director re-
directing teenagers before they commit crimes, 
we are helping keep this county safe and im-
proving outcomes for those who are incarcer-
ated.

The Barnstable County Correctional Facility, which opened in 2004, can hold up to 588 incarcerated 
individuals and consists of three houses made up of 12 different pods or housing units. These units 
house both male and female pre-trial and sentenced inmates.

we receive most of our funding ($32.8 million in 2023) from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
we also were awarded $3.7 million in grants in 2023.



The Five Most Common Charges for 2023

incarceration Population Trends

A total of 1,028 people were taken into custody this 
year, 183 (17.8 %) women to 845 males. They in-
clude 616 pre-trial intakes and 56 sentenced, along 
with 356 people held for warrant management/

police “safekeeps.” (Safekeeps is shorthand for de-
tainees who were arrested after the courts closed. 
We hold them until they can be arraigned.)

Statewide incarcerated Populations Have Decreased
(2017-2024, Snapshot as of Jan 1st by year)

Barnstable County Correctional Facility Population
(2017-2024 snapshot as of Jan. 1st by year)

Source: Cross-Tracking System | State & County Correctional Populations | Mass.gov

in 2023, the staff booked 1,028 individuals into the 
Barnstable County Correctional Facility.

l  162 Counts: A&B on Family/Household Member
l  100 Counts: A&B 
l  94 Counts: Resist Arrest
l  92 Counts: Threat to Commit Crime
l  85 Counts: Assault W/Dangerous Weapon



Human Services and Programs grew rapidly in 
2023. Chief of Inmate Programs and Services 
Barbara Clarkson and her staff have spent the 
year creating and improving treatments with 
a focus on trauma-informed care. Programs 
are designed to address criminal and addic-
tive behaviors, reduce recidivism, and pro-
mote community safety.

We have switched to a case-management 
model, whereby every incarcerated individual 
(pre-trial and sentenced) is assigned a case 
manager soon after intake. Re-entry work is 
embedded into the program, which includes 
work with Mass Health, provider appoint-
ments, and community resources.

During 2023, we prioritized the development 
of an all-inclusive Women’s Therapeutic Treat-
ment Program or WTTP, and began reevalu-
ating the programming available to men.

Programs Department expands

The Education Department began offering GED testing 
online.

The BCSO partnered with Falmouth Public Library to
organize our library and improve access to books.

Goal Setting and Journaling for men.

Journaling for women

Memoir Writing for women

l

l

l

l

l

what else is new programs?

Bourne Substance Free Coalition Co-Founder and 
Licensed Mental Health Counselor Beth Griffin and 
Chief of Inmate Programs and Services Barbara 
Clarkson carry Resource Bags donated by the Coali-
tion. The bags contain life-saving Narcan, fentanyl 
test strips, toiletries, bus schedules, a MBTA Charlie 
Card, pens, paper and hand sanitizer to be given to 
the incarcerated individuals when they are released.

Programs Partners 2023:

we Can
independence House
Learn to Cope
Children’s Cove
amazing Grace
Mass-Hire / Second Chance employers
Massachusetts rehabilitation Commission
Department of Transitional assistance
Housing assistance Corporation
Grace yoga
Health imperatives

Duffy Health Center
Cape Cod Chamber of Commerce
Bourne Substance Free Coalition
Cape Cod Community College
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Cape Cod 
and the islands
Community Health Centerof Cape Cod
Cultural Center of Cape Cod
Gosnold Behavioral Health
Police athletic League of Cape Cod



Phone Calls Became Free in 2023 Corrections ink

The print shop serves Barnstable County 
nonprofit organizations and government 
agencies by creating flyers, envelopes, bro-
chures, business cards, and booklets at the 
very low price of what it costs us in materi-
als. The print shop also introduces incar-
cerated individuals to design and printing 
skills. Print Shop Director Paul Coyle uses 
his experience in advertising to design a 
variety of print material — including what 
you are reading right now. For more infor-
mation: BCSOprintshop@bsheriff.net

Other Services to nonprofits and 
Government Organizations

In December of 2023, Governor Maura Healy signed legislation 
that hugely improved individuals’ ability to communicate with the 
outside world.  
 
Communicating with spouses, parents, siblings, and friends is 
tremendously important as a way for incarcerated individuals to 
maintain strong support systems. Individuals at the BCCF are given 
tablets, which they use to do everything from making phone calls 
and texting, to watching movies, and reading books. 
 
On Dec. 1 all inmate telephone communication through provider 
Securus went from being paid by the incarcerated individuals and 
their families to a no-cost model. This includes phone calls, text, 
and video visitation. 

The cost of free phone calls
 
In the first week alone, the call volume increased from 900 phone 
calls to 2,761 phone calls, a 300% increase. With free phone calls 
came the need for more resources to protect victims and maintain 
public safety.

The BCSO’s Special Operations Unit (SOU) is responsible for the 
monitoring of these phone calls. Monitoring protects victims, 
helps solve crimes, and helps prevent crimes including gang and 
drug related activity. The SOU also reviews all incoming and out-
going texts and video messages. Texts have increased from an av-
erage of 30 incoming and 30 outgoing in the period of a weekend, 
to 438 incoming and 122 outgoing. Additionally, video messages 
have increased from 5 videos over a weekend to 90 videos. Finally, 
there has been approximately a 400% increase in video visitation 
appointments as well. 
 

We want to help, not hurt. Everything we do is designed 
to improve the outcomes of our incarcerated popula-
tion. That begins with the most basic of human rights, 
mental and physical health care.  
 
The Health Services Department at the Barnstable 
County Correctional Facility opened on August 14, 2023. 

Sheriff Buckley terminated the Facility’s contract with the 
private medical vendor and moved forward with her vi-
sion for an in-house medical department.
 
The Health Services Dept. consists of nurses, mental 
health clinicians, psychiatric staff, and health services 
administration.

Health Services Came Home in 2023

The BCSO lends out tents for 
outdoor functions.

Work crews made up of 
incarcerated individuals do light 
construction and other jobs.

l

l

Licensed Professional Counselor 
Shelley Hart



Helping victims Stay Safe in 2023 victim Services
notified 230 crime victims of incarcerated indi-
viduals’ custody status.

in partnership with the Cape & islands District 
attorney’s Office, provided over 160 victims with 
information on pre-trial offenders released on 
bail.

Coordinated the service of over 55 restraining 
orders on individuals in the custody of the BCSO, 
thus ensuring that the offender cannot contact 
the victim while incarcerated.

l

l

l

BCSO WOOD WORKING SHOP

Est. 2023

SHaPinG LiveS in wOOD SHOP
The sawdust started to fly as soon as Lt. Sean Plummer 
took over the operation of the wood shop in 2023. Con-
struction is one of the main ways to make a living in this 
area. Teaching incarcerated individuals carpentry and 
woodworking has always been a goal of the sheriff’s of-
fice. Lt. Plummer has “built up” the program. 

Plummer’s lifelong hobby has been woodworking and 
carpentry. During his first year, Plummer and his students 
made Adirondack chairs and ottomans, side tables, bat 
houses, and birdhouses. 

His students can be creative. They have made wooden 
vases, bowls, cribbage boards, and wooden plates. One 
man designed a piggy bank to keep spare change that 
looks exactly like a metal motorcycle tank.

Plummer shares his joy for woodworking with his stu-
dents. Hopefully, it’s a lesson they won’t forget.

wood Shop Director Lt. Sean Plummer displays a 
“piggy bank” fashioned after a motorcycle that was 
made by an incarcerated individual during wood-
working class. 

Domestic violence is the No. 1 charge that led to incarcera-
tion at the BCCF in 2023. Unfortunately, violence against 
intimate partners is extremely common. For 20 years, Vic-
tim Services Specialist Jeffrey Ryan has been helping victims 
who are often scared, traumatized, and vulnerable. 

Ryan’s job falls under the requirements of the so-called 
“Massachusetts Crime Victim Bill of Rights,” which man-
dates victims be notified of offenders’ release dates. Ryan 
helps the victims with safety plans and restraining orders.  

Ryan also works to bring an end to domestic violence as a 
community activist. He is a member of the Cape & Islands 
Domestic Violence Council, the Cape & Islands Domestic 
Violence High-Risk Task Force, the White Ribbon Project, 
the Human Trafficking Working Group of Cape Cod, and the 
Statewide Post-Conviction Victim Services Working Group.

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE



BCSO has been in the emergency communications busi-
ness since 1938 when the Massachusetts State Legisla-
ture passed Chapter 100, of the Acts of 1938, authoriz-
ing the county commissioners 
to operate a police broad-
casting radio system. BCSO 
was incorporated into this by 
the county commissioners, 
and it officially became the 
Police County Radio system. 
Since that time many facets 
of the BCSO operation have 
changed, and we expect that 
to continue as the years go by. 

In 2023, the ECC handled 
47,227 911 calls, 30,603 fire 
and EMS calls for service, 1,272 
mutual aid calls, 48,017 CMED 
calls, 1,653 BCI calls, and 231 
K-9 Calls.

wHO we are: The core of the RECC is the people who 
work there around the clock. When fully staffed, there 
are 33 full-time telecommunicators and 10 per diem 

CMED operators, a training offi-
cer, an operations lieutenant, an 
assistant director, and a director. 
These are the first, first responders.  
 
wHaT we DO: The Barnstable 
County Sheriff’s Office Emer-
gency Communications Center 
(RECC) offers: 

•   Regional 911 for 8 communi-
ties 

•   Operates the mutual aid center 
for the county, dispatches BCSO 
K-9 and Bureau of Criminal Inves-
tigation and provides Centralized 
Medical Emergency Direction 
(CMED) services for 4 area hos-
pitals.  

Mashpee Fire Department
Orleans Fire Department
Harwich Fire Department
Wellfleet Fire Department
Brewster Fire Department

Bourne Fire Department
West Barnstable Fire Department
Barnstable Fire Department
Dennis Fire Department
Joint Base Cape Cod Fire Department

radio Tech Division 

regional emergency Communications Center

radio Tech Owen McLaughlin

The Technical  Services  Division or “radio shop”, maintains  
and  repairs  the Barnstable County Sheriff’s 2-way public 
safety radio systems and related subscriber units, security cam-
eras, vehicle emergency lighting, and several other systems.  
 
Additionally, the radio shop offers radio troubleshoot-
ing, repair, programming, installation, and other radio 
services to any public safety agency within the county.  
The techs work closely with the Massachusetts State Police radio 
techs in assisting with the statewide 800 MHz trunked radio system 
that serves the majority of public safety agencies on Cape Cod.  
 
The techs are on call 24/7 for both the BCSO as 
well as the other public safety agencies we serve.

we provide emergency fire and eMS dispatch services 
for 10 fire departments on Cape Cod.  



Civil Process Delivers

The primary function of the Bureau of 
Criminal Investigation, or more com-
monly referred to as BCI, is to pro-
vide professional forensic services to 

the multiple public safety agencies of 
Barnstable County through documen-
tation, processing, analysis and report-
ing. Almost all of the incidents that 
BCI responds to are based on Locard’s 
Exchange Theory which states “Any 
action of an individual…cannot occur 
without leaving a trace.” BCI handles 
a wide variety of incidents, but for the 

last 5 years, motor vehicle accidents 
have consistently topped the charts 
as the most requested service, closely 
followed by breaking and enterings, 

assault and batteries, vandalism, pho-
tography and evidence processing.

BCI assists with motor vehicle accidents 
on almost a daily basis. For the most 
part, car accidents require  straightfor-
ward scene documentation that can be 
cleared in 30-60 minutes.  Conversely, 
breaking and entering investigations 

are time-consuming, multi-faceted 
events that range from scene docu-
mentation to evidence collection and 
processing and ultimately latent finger-
print analysis which combined can be 
several days of work.  The investigation 
hopefully concludes with the identifica-
tion of a suspect.  Officers within the 
BCI unit utilize the universally accepted 
Analysis, Comparison, Evaluation, Veri-
fication method or otherwise known as 
ACE-V, when identifying fingerprints. 
To reduce cognitive bias in the verifi-
cation phase, the unit has recently in-
tegrated blind verifications into the 
process. Coupled with technical and 
administrative reviews of all latent 
identifications, the result is a profes-
sional and transparent work product.  

BCi responded to More Crimes than ever in 2023

The mission of the CPD is to serve civil court papers on behalf of plaintiff at-
torneys or Pro Se plaintiffs, (plaintiffs who represent themselves in court.) The 
reason court papers are served by Deputy Sheriffs to defendants in civil mat-
ters is to ensure that defendants are legally notified and aware of the pending 
litigation against them. Not all court papers have to be served by hand, but 
the CPD attempts to serve all defendants by hand because that is the most 
reliable form of service. 



The Barnstable County Sheriff’s Office’s K9 officers, 
Tactical Response Team, and Special Operations 
officers assist individual police departments, and 
state and federal agencies during large-scale in-
vestigations, missing person searches, and special 
responses. Our officers are trained in hostage ne-
gotiation and assist in SWAT team operations.

We have drones, bike and ATV patrols that assist 
towns during major events, like parades and fes-
tivals.  We offer remote-controlled search robots 
and a mobile command post. 

Our partner law enforcement agencies include:

•   Cape Cod regional Law enforcement 
    Council
•   U.S. Drug enforcement agency
•   Cape Cod Drug Task Force

Law enforcement: we Have your Back

Our youth Programs partners include: 
•   Bay Cove Human Services
•   Children’s Cove 
•   YMCA’s Camp Lyndon 
•   The Family Table Collaborative 
•   West Barnstable Fire Department 
•   The Cape Cod Chamber of Commerce 
•   Cape Cod Community College 
•   People of Action
•   Barnstable Police
•   Yarmouth Police
•   Dennis Police
•   Cape Cod Baseball League, 
    Falmouth Commodores

Prevention Strategy: Focus on youth

The best way to keep our community safe is to teach 
pro-social skills to our young people. The BCSO Youth 
Academy, which graduated 19 students in 2023, ad-
dresses the root causes of anti-social behavior includ-
ing mental illness, child abuse, and substance abuse in 
a structured learning environment. The instructors fo-
cus on mental health awareness, self-control, respect, 

teamwork, integrity, communication, and decision-
making skills for students ages 12 to 16. The students 
bond with each other and form lasting relationships 
with the group leaders, while they learn about nutri-
tion, mental health, career planning, and team building 
from some of the best community leaders on Cape Cod.  

in May, Majors Louis Langton and Kevin Fernandes 
were given the Medal of valor from the executive 

Office of Public Safety and Security for successfully 
convincing a shooter to surrender. Their successful ne-
gotiation protected the other responding officers and 
citizens in a densely populated neighborhood. They 
were working as members of the Cape Cod regional 

Law enforcement Council’s SwaT team.



The Barnstable County Sheriff’s Office hired a to-
tal of 59 individuals in 2023. The Human Resources 
Dept. recruited all year long. They attended 7 career 
fairs and held two correctional officer academies. 
We continue to recruit. Jobs at the BCSO are di-
verse opportunities and can accommodate a vari-
ety of talents and interests. Generous state health 
and retirement benefits are included.

The BCSO held two correctional officer recruit 
training academies in 2023 and graduated 17 
new correctional officers.

Careers here: 
•   Corrections Officers
•   Telecommunicators
•   Radio Technicians
•   Human services employees
•   Maintenance staff
•   Information Technology
•   Administrative support
•   Criminal identification staff for 
     the Bureau of Criminal Investigation
•   Medical employees

Third Quarter employee 
of the Quarter: 

Deputy 
Kenneth Finnemore

Second Quarter 
employee of 

the Quarter: Sgt. 
Terry Mumper  

First Quarter employee 
of the Quarter:

 Deputy Brittney 
Martinsen of the Special 

Operations Unit

Public Safety employee 
of the year 

andrew de Blank, CMeD  

Civilian employee 
of the year award 

Patrick DePina

Correctional Officer 
of the year 

Brian Garvey

To keep up with the 
latest news and 

opportunities at the 
BCSO follow us on

OUr PeOPLe are OUr everyTHinG

Barnstable County Sheriff’s Office

barnstablesheriff

@bcsosheriff2

Barnstable County Sheriff’s Office




































	04.02.24 Select Board Agenda - STAMPED
	3. Vision and Mission Statements
	9. 2024 Spring Town Meeting Voter Handbook DRAFT
	9i. Article 97 back up docs
	10a. Request for Disposal_Trade and Transfer
	10b. Renewal Special Events
	10c. Library donation from CC Foundation
	13. Bourne Layout and Acceptance of Private Ways Policy_3rd Read F1 TL
	16. Board of Selectmen 10.18.22 minutes
	16. Select Board 031224 minutes draft
	04.02.24 Correspondence Combined.pdf
	04.02.24 Correspondence
	A.  DEP letter - Decision Old K Range Munitions Response Area Comments 03-2024
	B.  DEP letter -  Feasibility Study Otis Gun Club Munitions Response Area Comments 03-2024
	C.  7 Gainsboro Drive - Waterways Regulation License
	D.  Barnstable Co. Sheriff's Office Year in Review 2023
	E.  Plymouth Co. Parking Quarterly
	F.  Upper Cape Tech - FY25 budget
	G. Upper Cape Tech 2.8.24 Committee Minutes
	H. Xfinity channel changes




